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The Estate Agents Authority ("EAA”) is a statutory body, established in November 1997 under
the Estate Agents Ordinance (“EAQ"). Its principal functions are to regulate the practice
of the estate agency trade in Hong Kong, promote integrity and competence within the
industry, and facilitate training for practitioners to ensure a proper standard of conduct.

The EAA organises qualifying examinations, issues licences to individuals and companies,
handles complaints against licensees, conducts compliance inspections and metes out
disciplinary sanctions to practitioners who have breached the EAO. The EAA also organises
activities for the professional development of the trade and promotion of consumer
education.

The EAA is a self-financing body. It consists of a Chairman, a Vice-chairman, and not more
than 18 ordinary members from various sectors in the community, including the estate
agency sector. The Chairman, Vice-chairman and every ordinary member are appointed by
the Chief Executive of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.
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Vision & Mission

EPRFES

Our Vision

EERBEIRN

" EREMERERFONE DERKSERE - UWREEEENEZ - &
" TEHEREEXTERE  AERHEEE -

The EAA strives for

m excellence in regulating the practice of the estate agency trade, for the protection of consumers'interests; and
® supporting the development of an estate agency profession worthy of the respect of the community.

R

Our Mission

REBBHEREENNE - BAREENERLES - WAEAR LS M BIERENIEST -
To regulate the practice of estate agency in Hong Kong, raise the competence of practitioners and set high
standards of ethics and conduct befitting the trade.

Paxlax
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¢« The EAA Structure
EERESRR
The EAA Board
A1 R RBR ol heee PERES FEuE 508 (&
BEREAR ZEg ZEg 8% ZEg C
F|rs1ance and Disciplinary Licensing Practice and Professional Section 28
D trlateg|c Committee Committee Examination Development Investigation
gve Rament Committee Committee Panel
ommittee
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Chief Executive Officer
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The EAA Administration
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Chairman's Message
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Regardless of what the market sentiment
is, the EAA will continue to upgrade the
trade's professionalism and integrity so
that users of estate agents' services will

be better protected. 0o
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A turbulent year that requires swift action

It is undeniable that 2015/16 was a turbulent year for the estate
agency trade, with low transaction figures creating a far-reaching
impact on the trade and the livelihood of our licensees.

We appreciate the fierce competition among the trade on this
bumpy road and the consequential enormous pressure faced by
some licensees. In this challenging environment, the EAA must
stay proactive, remain vigilant and act swiftly to deter and prevent
as much as possible any non-compliance acts by practitioners.

Stepping up our efforts on multiple fronts

Our licensees play an important role in the process of property
transaction and it is the EAA's duty to monitor their practices and
ensure their compliance of the regulations.

During the year, the EAA reinforced its efforts on monitoring
estate agents’ practices on multiple fronts. In addition to
inspecting the first-sale sites which have been under the media
spotlight, our team also stepped up cyber patrols to closely
monitor online property advertisements and online property
portals as online promotion has become more popular and
sometimes too convenient.

The recent rise in complaint cases against licensees is worrying.
We are concerned that licensees are suffering from tremendous
pressure in producing sales results and we suspect that the
number of complaints may be closely linked to sales pressure.
What we have not ascertained is whether the pressure
comes from the licensees themselves or is originated by the
management of estate agency companies or both. We will
watch the practices of our licensees closely and, if necessary, take
actions to discourage undue management practices that cause
malpractices of their employees.
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While law enforcement is undoubtedly the strongest tool for a
regulatory body like the EAA, self-discipline is not to be neglected
as it is vital to the sustainability of a respectable profession. In
this regard, we continue to optimise our efforts on educating the
trade to enhance their awareness and professional standard.

For instance, we published a new booklet this year to educate the
trade the relevant guidelines and ethics that they should comply
with when handling first-sale transactions, through illustrations of
real inquiry hearing cases.

To encourage licensees’ participation in the Continuing
Professional Development (“CPD") Scheme, after introducing the
"Gold” and “Silver” Premium CPD Attainment Symbols, the EAA
will soon introduce a new structured CPD programme that will
further improve our licensees' requlatory knowledge, as well as
equip them with the skills to implement that knowledge in their
practice.

On another front, the EAA has also continued to educate the
public by a number of new initiatives. We organised two public
seminars about first-sale and tenancy matters of residential
properties respectively. In addition to a new TV commercial, we
also provided a wealth of educational information on our newly
redesigned website this year, facilitating members of the public
and our licensees to acquire the information they need, no matter
if they are at home, in the office, or on the go.

Approaching 20 years of age

The EAA is a teenager turning to be 20 years of age in 2017. We
shall continue to improve on our work quality for the provision of
better services.

Internally, the EAA keeps on providing training and development
programmes to our staff to help them realise their potential. As
a result, for the first time, the EAA has been acknowledged as
a "Manpower Developer” by the Employees Retraining Board
for outstanding achievements in manpower training and
development.

Estate Agents Authority ® Annual Report 2015/16
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We were also awarded, for the first time again, the “Caring
Organisation” logo by the Hong Kong Council of Social Service
in recognition of our contribution to social development and
commitment to Caring for the Community, Caring for the
Employees and Caring for the Environment.

In addition, two EAA staff were among the 50 recipients of “The
Ombudsman’s Awards 2015" This was the first time that EAA
officers were commended for their outstanding performance in
providing quality customer service.

We are thankful and modest for all the above recognition which
has encouraged us to improve our work continuously.
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Fasten our seatbelts for the future

Last year, the EAA once again worked hard to ensure that
appropriate guidelines and professional training are in place for
our licensees.

As mentioned in the very beginning of my message here, we
know 2017 will probably be a bumpy ride, but we are confident
that the EAA's commitment to excellence will remain.

Regardless of what the market sentiment is, the EAA will continue
to upgrade the trade’s professionalism and integrity so that users
of estate agents'services will be better protected.

Appreciations

In closing, I would like to take this opportunity to thank all of our
dedicated management team and Board members for working
relentlessly to ensure the EAA's smooth operation. | also welcome
two new Board members, Ms Imma Ling Kit-sum and Mr Ng Kai-
man, who newly joined us in November 2015.

My heartfelt appreciation also goes to the Government and the
estate agency trade, for their staunch and continuous support,
without which the EAA’s initiatives could not have been carried
out smoothly. | look forward to continuing this journey together
in 2017, a year that marks the EAA's 20" anniversary.

William LEUNG Wing-cheung, sBs, Jp

Chairman

Estate Agents Authority ® Annual Report 2015/16
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With years of continuous efforts
spent on educating consumers, it
is observed that they have become
more aware of their own rights

and now pay more attention to the
trade's conduct. 5y
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

This is the third report | present as the Chief Executive Officer
("CEQ") of the Estate Agents Authority (“EAA”). During the year
2015/16, the property market experienced a deep dive and
the business of the estate agency trade was notably affected.
Under these volatile market conditions, the EAA was dedicated
to monitoring the trade’s practice more closely, promoting the
professionalism of the trade through continuous training, and
enhancing consumer education. Here | would like to give a brief
account of our work on various fronts over the year.

Market overview

The property market experienced a dramatic drop despite a
higher number of licensees in the year. The total number of
property transactions amounted to 62,438 in 2015/16, which was
31% lower than the figure in 2014/15. The total consideration has
also dropped by 27% to around $449 billion. This has proven to
be a hard time for the trade.

That said, the number of individual licences has slightly increased
to 37,138 as of 31 March 2016, representing a 3.6% increase over
that of the previous year, and the overall number of candidates
participating in the qualifying examinations also showed a slight
increase compared to that in 2014/15. The number of candidates
actually sitting the Estate Agents Qualifying Examination has
increased by about 0.3%, while an increase of about 20.6% was
seen in the case of Salespersons Qualifying Examination.

With a higher number of licensees and fewer property
transactions during the year, it is not hard to notice that there
was severe competition amongst the trade. Nonetheless, the EAA
has spared no effort to regulate the trade’s practice and to raise
their professional standard, regardless of how challenging the
operating environment had been.
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Ensuring compliance of the trade

One of the important components of a regulatory regime is
compliance checking, particularly in one of the keen competition
fields of first-sale residential properties. With years of continuous
efforts spent on educating consumers, it is observed that they
have become more aware of their own rights and now pay more
attention to the trade’s conduct. In 2015/16, the EAA conducted
1,208 compliance checks at first-sale sites and 1,477 visits at estate
agency shops respectively. A total of 607 inspections of online
property advertisements were also conducted during the year.
During these checks and visits, licensees were also educated on
the new practice circulars and the requirements relating to estate
agency practice. The trade was reminded to comply with the new
guidelines through Continuing Professional Development (“CPD")
seminars, Letters to Licensees and regular liaison meetings held
with them.

With a view to better facilitating the management of estate
agency companies to properly control their business and ensure
compliance of frontline agents, the EAA regularly issues practice
circulars and other guidelines to make sure licensees comply
with the regulatory requirements. In 2015/16, the EAA issued
four practice circulars, amongst which was one to deal with the
topical issue of estate agents suspected of inflating the number
of registrations of intent in the sale of first-hand residential
properties.

Estate Agents Authority ® Annual Report 2015/16
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

In light of the public concern that there could be a potential
conflict of interest if licensees who were involved in the sale and
or purchase of first-hand residential properties and who at the
same time submit for themselves registrations of intent in the sale
and/or purchase of such properties, a new practice circular on
declaration of submission of registrations of intent in the sales of
first-hand residential properties was issued.

This timely circular sets out guidelines for estate agency
companies which were involved in the sale and/or purchase of
first-hand residential properties and individual licensees who
worked for them to follow when they or members of their staff
who were licensees submit for themselves registrations of intent
in that sale.

The EAA also issued other practice circulars providing guidelines
in other areas such as proper authorisation by absent contracting
party, completion of provisional tenancy agreement and tenancy
agreement; and sale and purchase or leasing of car parking
spaces.

Continuous efforts in raising professional
standards of the trade

In 2015/16, the EAA has adjudicated on 186 non-compliant cases
and a total of 190 licensees were disciplined. 56 licences were
revoked in the year and these revocations were decided by the
EAA's Licensing Committee on the ground that their holders no
longer meet the licensing requirements.
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R ATER 2B EEEEEETEILARTT  To recognise licensees’' continuous effort in enhancing their
M EERELEEZEEETEE  knowledge through participation in the CPD Scheme, the EAA
MRS | MEZ] BEFH  introduced the “Gold” and “Silver” Premium CPD Attainment
FEEERFEM-FEXIFEZEHEEST  Symbols, which will be presented to those licensees who have
ZEENERA - ERE2FHEBIEM  respectively achieved the CPD attainment target for a consecutive
EREEKEERELEAEEMEESD - I period of five or three years. A new structured programme for the
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(From left) EAA Director of Regulatory Affairs & General Counsel Ms Eva Lau, Director of Operations Ms Annie Fonda, Chief Executive Officer
Ms Ruby Hon and Director of Services Mr Cavan Cheung.
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Communications with the trade and
consumers

Our engagement with the trade is another important component
of our regulatory work. The EAA continued to hold quarterly
liaison meetings with trade associations and met frontline
licensees in various districts through focus group meetings
during the year. A regular dialogue with the trade helps licensees
understand the rationale behind our new guidelines and policies,
and prepares them for the eventual introduction of these
measures.

Equally important, the EAA continued its efforts through
collaborations with the media to raise the public’s awareness of
the EAA. In the year, the EAA organised three press conferences,
issued 19 press releases, and arranged eight feature interviews. A
total of 48 articles by the EAA were also contributed to the media
to promote consumer related information and the EAA's work.
One of the major consumer education campaigns in the year
was about tenancy matters. In order to remind the public of the
important points-to-note when appointing an estate agency to
enter into a tenancy for residential properties, the EAA produced
a new Announcement in the Public Interest together with a new
education booklet on this theme, and organised a public seminar
as well.

As well as holding and participating in exhibitions, the EAA
started a new initiative this year on consumer education and
organised two public seminars titled “Tips to become a smart
purchaser of first-hand residential properties” and “Learn more
about the tenancy matters of residential properties” respectively
during the year. The feedback was positive and we will continue
to organise more public seminars in the future.
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Acknowledgements and the EAA’s
commitment

The property market during the year was not a promising one.
The year in review has been challenging both for the trade and
the EAA. Notwithstanding, the EAA has discharged its various
duties faithfully and will continue to remain vigilant and adapt
responsively to the environment to deter any non-compliance
in the trade. | wish the trade stays professional and committed,
no matter how difficult the times are and together with the EAA
develop an estate agency profession worthy of the respect of the
community. We shall overcome.

As always, | am grateful for the advice and unfailing support the
Board has rendered me, in particular, the EAA Chairman and other
learned Members. With the EAA’s 20™ anniversary approaching
next year, let us not only celebrate the work it has done but also
strive for advancement, both the EAA and the trade. That said, our
work could not have been accomplished without our very hard-
working staff, who have shown dedication and commitment to
their work throughout the year, and are geared up for another
exciting yet challenging year to come.

Ruby HON Yuen-ping

Chief Executive Officer

Estate Agents Authority ® Annual Report 2015/16
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Mr William LEUNG Wing-cheung, SBS, JP

Chief Executive Officer,
Sun Hung Kai Financial Limited

Chairman, Employees Retraining Board

Advisor, Our Hong Kong Foundation

Chairman, Hong Kong Creative Arts Centre Limited

Member, Manpower Development Committee

Member, Digital 21 Strategy Advisory Committee

Co-opted Member, Education, Employment and Training Task Force
of the Commission on Poverty
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Ms Elaine LIU Yuk-ling, JP

Barrister-at-law

® Deputy Chairman, Board of Review (Inland Revenue Ordinance)

® Vice Chairman, Licensing Appeals Board

B Member, District Court Rules Committee

B Member, Advisory Committee on Travel Agents

= Member, Professional Services Advisory Committee of Hong Kong
Trade Development Council
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Mr Charles CHAN Chiu-kwok

Managing Director, Savills Valuation and
Professional Services (Greater China)

= Member, Appeal Tribunal Panel (Buildings)
of Development Bureau

® Member, Solicitors Disciplinary Tribunal
Panel

EEE BB Members of the EAA !

BREEHIER

EBAEEE R R R
BT RE(E
B A SR L T

m GEEMEM EFZEEKE
(2011-17)

s FFZER(MRERRBEIDKE
(2013-16)

n T RERGRAE B K E
(2015-18)

m FRZEEORTAREDKE
(2006-12)

m ELTiRAMAMEREEEZE
(2008-11)

n HEAERMEEER(2009-10)

Professor CHAU Kwong-wing

Chair Professor and Head of
Department of Real Estate and
Construction, The University of Hong
Kong

Director, Ronald Coase Centre for
Property Rights Research, The University
of Hong Kong

B Member, Home Purchase Allowance
Appeals Committee (2011-17)

® Member, Appeal Board Panel (Urban
Renewal Authority Ordinance) (2013-16)

® Member, Land and Development
Advisory Committee (2015-18)

= Member, Appeal Board Panel (Town
Planning) (2006-12)

B Member, Geotechnical Engineers
Registration Committee (2008-11)

B President, Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors (2009-10)

IREQFG AT ARt

RESHEIEMEBaRA
BB T RBHRER/F B

L EF'@I“__HIH—_DE#E E§/§\

" REEERMEELZEEXR
= §5’§%)§§§@§E

= EERIBESARARES
" BRSO LREA

Mr Horace CHEUNG Kwok-kwan, JP

Partner, Cheung & Yeung, Solicitors
Visiting Lecturer (Part-time), The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University

® Elected Member, Central & Western District
Coundil

® Member, Long Term Housing Strategy
Steering Committee

® Member, Hong Kong Housing Authority

® Director, the Hong Kong Mortgage
Corporation Limited

= Member, Disciplinary Panel A of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants
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SRR EED
hEMITERES

n HEAEME22R(2015-16)

s RESREFFIZMEehNE
HEEEBEERE

n FRREHMEER IR E BT
gXZLE

u if@&gﬂm A ?Eﬁ@ﬁk%
m (TR EHFEZEEENE

-Eéﬁﬁ% BERARES
(2015-17)

Sr LAU Chun-kong

International Director, Jones Lang
LaSalle Limited

B President, Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors (2015-16)

® RICS Asia Valuation Professional Group
Board Member

B |nternational Valuation Standards Council
Professional Board Member

® Member, Land and Development
Advisory Committee

® Member, Administrative Appeals Board

® Director, Hong Kong Cyberport
Management Company Limited
(2015-17)
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Members of the EAA

ERLZ L

B’ RUICE R ET RN E ST

CIESEIR=E TN

" EEHEAERESREFR
*EJ@ BEELE

n BRERREERRLRES
"EAIERE AZESKE

n EAEFHEEFECRE

n EEEFIREHRETREESKE

n ABEVIENTEEHSLREES
WITE8

n EERHERHESCEERKE
(2006-12)

Ms Imma LING Kit-sum

Retired Assurance Partner,
PricewaterhouseCoopers

® Council Member and Audit Committee
Chairperson, The Education University of
Hong Kong

® Hospital Governance Committee
Member, Kwong Wah Hospital & TWGHSs
Wong Tai Sin Hospital, Hospital Authority

= Council Member, The Hong Kong
Federation of Youth Groups

B Executive Committee Member, The Hong
Kong Youth Hostels Association

® Executive Committee Member of
Regulatory Committee, The Hong Kong
Independent Non-Executive Director
Association

® Board Member, HKSAR Employees
Compensation Assistance Fund Board
(2006-12)

gEELE

B OSELRTERAT
TRBRERTT B A AR RN T
TABMREEE

= B RHEEREREEERBR

aHREERE
= FRETAS R MEAKE

= REREREE
" FEEEZESEYEE/H
EZ'/\EﬁX/Ei

Mr LIU Che-ning

Co-Head of Global Banking, Asia-
Pacific Global Banking and Markets,
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited

® Member, Takeovers and Mergers Panel for
the Securities and Futures Commission

= Member, Disciplinary Panel A of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants

® Member, Board of Inland Revenue

® Member of the Subsidised Housing
Committee, Hong Kong Housing
Authority
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K2R 4 21 BEBRA G THAER FEERMITERA
it X AR E LREEEKE w HE B 4872 (1994-95) " BREP FREHEGEEY) R
. )\iﬁéi‘&‘%ﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁﬁ DR RENEREESWMEER " L,wﬁ AT A EREEEER
" R REEEEREERRITE (1995-96) n EESHITHEER FFEEE
Bﬂ”EEr
Miss Jane Curzon LO, JP Mr NG Kai-man = EmRE LREBEER
. . . 3 L ﬁimggﬁﬁiﬁi}Xuﬁg/\ = ﬂ’_ji;-\
Barrister-at-law Chief Executive Officer, Century 21 " EER FREEETE(2007-13)

Hong Kong Limited
® Member, Accreditation of Academic and

Mr Simon SIU Chak-yu, BBS, JP

Vocational Qualifications Appeal Board ® Director of Pok Oi Hospital (1994-95)
® Adjudicator, Immigration Tribunal ® Co-chairman of Community Chest Estates Partner, Hastings & Co.
® \ice-chairman, Security and Guarding for the Chest Committee (1995-96)
Services Industry Authority B (Chairman, Appeal Tribunal Panel

(Buildings) of Development Bureau

® (Chairman, Environmental Impact
Assessment Appeal Board Panel

B Deputy Chairman, HKSAR Passports
Appeal Board

® Member, Appeal Board Panel (Town
Planning)

® Observer, Independent Police Complaints
Coundil

B (Chairman, Housing Bureau Appeal Panel
(2007-13)
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w IRHERR E T REETE

Mr Calvin TSE Shun-lai

CEO, Ka Wai Property Agency Co. Ltd.

CEO, Ka Hing Properties Co. Ltd.

® Chairman, Hong Kong Real Estate
Agencies General Association
® Member, Sedentary and Professional

Services Safety and Health Committee,

Occupational Safety & Health Council
® Chairman, Incorporated Owners of
Garden Rivera
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Mr Lawrance WONG Dun-king

President, Many Wells Property Agent
Limited

® Honorary President, Hong Kong Chamber
of Professional Property Consultants
Limited

® Member, Employees Retraining Board

= Convenor, Course and Service
Development Committee, Employees
Retraining Board

B Member, Quality Assurance and Review
Committee, Employees Retraining Board

B Member, Audit Committee, Employees
Retraining Board

= Member, Tuen Mun District Coordination
Mechanism, Social Welfare Department

BERALL
HEELZESRHE

= ﬂﬂ%%ﬁ%iéiﬁééi

n HEERAESERRZEGEAKE
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" BEEREEREIFRAFEN
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RERYPENERZESHKE

Ms Gilly WONG Fung-han
Chief Executive, Consumer Council

Member, Competition Commission

Ex Officio Member, Management
Committee of the Consumer Legal
Action Fund

Member, Advisory Committee on Travel
Agents

Member, Deposit-taking Companies
Advisory Committee, Hong Kong
Monetary Authority

Member, Travel Industry Compensation
Fund Management Board

Member, Committee on Reduction of Salt
and Sugar in Food
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n BEGEREZGERINER
RERFZERRTRE

" HERERIMAERTE

" REERETHEMEEERGE

Mr Ricky WONG Kwong-yiu

Director, Wheelock and Company
Limited

Managing Director, Wheelock
Properties (HK) Limited

® Associate Member, Central Policy Unit of
HKSAR

® Co-opted Member of the Hong Kong
Diploma of Secondary Education
Examination — Applied Learning
Subject Committee of the Hong Kong
Examinations and Assessment Authority

= Director, Hong Kong Green Building
Council and Vice-Chairman, Public
Education Committee

® Vice-Chairman of Employers' Federation
of Hong Kong

® Fellow Member of Royal Institution of
Chartered Surveyors

REDLE
ESRBEEETTIERRA

" FEEFHBHAUREREEES
BEEELE

" DRABFERBEKEEHEES
E3=]

" BRI ATSEREREENZESERE

Miss Melissa WU
Head of Audit, KPMG Hong Kong

® Member, The Lord Wilson United World
Colleges Scholarship Fund Council

® Member, The Standing Committee
on Disciplined Services Salaries and
Conditions of Service

= Member, Advisory Committee on Post-
service Employment of Civil Servants

REBATHL

BEIKEHERRAF]
HWERS(—)aRrgiR

n AAMERSHSREEEKELESRE

n BEPFEREGEEY)KE

n EEEREREET AGMEEERE

 REBEEEMNPUREDE TR )MA

m AEEEeNE(HE2014F1H8318)

SR TR T E (AE 20154
7A318)

Mr YU Wai-wai, JP

General Manager (Project Management
(1) Department), Henderson Land
Development Company Limited

B Member, Construction Sub-Committee,
The Real Estate Developers Association of
Hong Kong (REDA)

B Member, Appeal Tribunal Panel (Buildings)
of Development Bureau

B Member, Construction Workers
Registration Board, Construction Industry
Council

= Member, Working Group on Security of
Payment Legislation for the Construction
Industry (Development Bureau)

® Member, Construction Industry Council
(upto 31 January 2014)

B Chairman, Zero Carbon Building,
Construction Industry Council (up to 31
July 2015)
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Members of the EAA

X & MEMBERS

%H’E%Zzi ERFARFHE
KBRS AR R RIEINA BRLEERENER(BE)

(BB REEREAWER(BE)IREK)

= TR FSRREEEKE

= HES (HEEOREEE) LREEBEKE Ms Agnes WONG Tin-yu, JP

 REER AR A EIELZESKE . )

R EEBRSSESEEEEeNE Deputy Secretary for Transport and Housing (Housing)
(Representative of Permanent Secretary for Transport

Ms Avon YUE Nga-fong and Housing (Housing))

Partner, Ernst & Young Advisory Services Limited

® Member, Appeal Board Panel (Town Planning)

B Member, Appeal Board on Closure Orders (Immediate
Health Hazard)

B Member, Assessment Committee of Exchanges with
Taiwan Funding Scheme

® Member, Fisheries Development Loan Fund Advisory
Committee
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ELE A E Members of the EAA

EERKE T HEITREIIRITEE
Members of the EAA regularly hold meetings with the Administration.
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Events & Activities

B SRS FEEYEHETERERINBEEMERL

HE R E (1R5E 15-03(CR) IR E REF S

B Press Conference on issuing new Practice Circular of

' Declaration of Submission of Registrations of Intent in the

n 5@ —FEEMESE Sales of First-Hand Residential Properties (No. 15-03(CR))
EHEERE RED
BB SRR

B CPD seminar on cases
about the sale of
first-hand residential
properties

4/2015 5/2015 6/2015

G =Y ERE KR 225
MBERBE - TRMERS ]
BB SR

B CPD seminar on "Guide to
Inspection of Residential

Properties" and "All You Can Ask

— Industrial and Commercial
Property Transactions"

 EFEFE IRTHRERERAKE
B Receiving delegation of Qinghai Province Administration '
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m EEREREE - BEE20155F
FHFETEREN T FEIIEES
B The EAA meets the press to review
its work in the first half of 2015
and introduces its initiatives for
the second half

m BB RSN HEETH
A EBE

B Participating in a recruitment
Expo in Yau Tong

m BRI PEER I
2R - BT BRI
KFEFE]
FHES R HEEERE

B CPD seminar on "Tips to
promote compliance in the
trade: Procedures on complaints
handling of the EAA"

7/2015

8/2015

9/2015

AR EESARARN

A A

BERE
B Receiving student delegation of
Legal Education Fund Limited

m HRAFEmE - FhE
HhEE R IR A B I E th
REEBNEENRR—F
EEYRHEPRERH
BT TR RHEERE
HEIEBE

® CPD seminar on " New
Practice Circular — Duties of
Licensed Estate Agents in
Ensuring Effective Control of
Estate Agency Business and
Declaration of Submission of
Registrations of Intent in the
Sales of First-Hand Residential
Properties"

m PMEABRITIIEAE R R -
ARl EAERR —F A2 B X |
N2

B Public Seminar on "Tips to
become a smart purchaser
of First-Hand Residential
Properties" held in North Point

Estate Agents Authority ® Annual Report 2015/16
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Events & Activities

mOHEE/MTF
(RLEERER) HifR

' B Consumer booklet
"A Guide to Tenancy"
» EERMME B TERSREE R published

B Two EAA staff receive the
Ombudsman's Award

EMNA % E & 3K %R
ESTATE AGENTS AUTHORITY

10/2015 11/2015 12/2015

W E—
R (b
N |
_—
=0,
s
REFREOIER —
" RN R E R E "
COESTEEE i d
‘ ® CPD seminar on "Tips in ENA
mELE %%Eﬁif%ﬁ%’ﬂﬁﬁﬁ Handling Sale and Purchase i

EERIA 01 ofilage House! o NI R ATAEN

B The EAA participates in the %iﬁf—fﬂi‘—%%¥>}ﬁﬁ&

"Walkathgn ﬁ/\m ‘; olrgglf]\isgd - " ﬁ%@iﬁﬁiij% - m Booklet titled "Inquiry Hearing

y Mother's Cholce ' RANIFREE SRER ] & Cases of Estate Agents —

Tif%:ég%’gﬂ% wAEE A Selection (First-Hand Residential

® CPD seminaron Properties)" published

‘Lessons to Learn — '

In-depth Analyses of
Non-Compliance Cases"

HERIEEED » 2015/16 FR



mEH TSRS EER R
BIHRECRERS

B New Announcement in the Public
Interest ("API") launched and tied
in with roving exhibitions

" REEERER '

B Chinese New Year media luncheon

- \ - EERELENEE
" %ﬁ)ﬁ%@ﬂﬁé@ﬁ%ﬁﬁ’ﬂ%ﬁ% ® Revamped EAA website
HEEE launched

B Participating in a recruitment
Expo in Tuen Mun

-
1/2016 2/2016 3/2016

ARBAE NI :

[ﬁﬁf‘ﬁ :

m NOHBITIREABERY
EEHEMZW ] NFHEE

B Pyblic Seminar on "Learn more about the tenancy
matters of residential properties" held in Shatin

m EERe REE - EE2015FTIEREN
2016 FT1EES,

B The EAA meets the press to review its work in
2015 and introduces its initiatives for 2016

m EEINREREZERKE
B Receiving the delegation of the Council for
‘ Estate Agencies of Singapore

" SRR EEH BRI SR E
ARERHS
B Prize presentation ceremony of
the EAA's Premium CPD Attainment Symbol
' Design Competition
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Organisation and People

Staffing

The EAA is headed by the Chief Executive Officer ("CEQ") who has
overall responsibilities for managing the business of the EAA, and
monitoring and supervising compliance with the Estate Agents
Ordinance. As at 31 March 2016, the staff establishment was 94.
The percentage of employees with disabilities was 1%. The staff
turnover rate for 2015/16 was 11%.

EERMITHEFIRITHREHES &
BREBEDIEEREEREN  UKE
RE\EERETCEEREKED) - B
E2016F3A3H EERBERH
HBEHUZET  BEEELBEESE
1% * 2015/16 FEHB TMAER11% °

EERITHEFIABREE
Organisation chart of the EAA Administration

32

TTIRAEEL
Chief Executive
Officer
Director of s tor of Director of
B o Regulatory Affairs & Servi
Vel General Counsel <>
R 1 EREGEREH SEEREL
........... =
R lsints | Legal Services & Professional
P Examination Development
MRS EERAL /
. KRR AR EERUEE
........... [=] veeessesons wesssesons
) Disciplinary Corporate
R ints 2 Proceedings Communications/
Board Secretariat
........... HHITED hE AR =B AN ERE
Enforcement Licensing Human Resources
BB & I RATIRER
.......... 048 47 58 -
IT & Data Analysis Administration
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EEE HERK The EAATeam

HMEER LI THE T4RT
Non-directorate staff establishment

25 23
15
14
8
2
n EAREEIE SRR R . AEFE . BhEEF 1
Senior Manager/Legal Counsel Investigator Assistant Officer
e FE =R E
Manager Officer . Serior Clerk
BIEAEIE 1TERBNIE . X8
Assistant Manager Administrative Assistant Clerk
F N Remuneration

EERTHR S EHFMEEE - UHERF  The EAA regularly reviews its remuneration policy and practices
B FEmHBE2 — 3 E£ASBE  to ensure that our remuneration packages are in line with the
b —-THOBRFNARWSI N LA market trends and practices, to maintain competitiveness in
MEBEBEFET - At ABRZFT  attracting and retaining high performing staff. To this end, we
By BRI A REFRNETEHMMAKTFE  commissioned an independent remuneration consultant to
NEFiBE AL - SEBMHNTESE conducta pay level and pay trend survey during the year. The pay
DIREHIB K FHEITHE « 20165 M4 ranges of various ranks have been revised in line with the market.
ERRBABRFESHENLXE THBE  Our annual performance-linked pay adjustment exercise in 2016
PAEERMEET ° also drew reference from the findings of the pay trend survey.
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The EAA Team

AN 1T B RN 48 B 9 37 A Remuneration of Chief Executive Officer and
Directors during the year

KEESHFTRAEMmE /' The total remuneration’ of the Chief Executive Officer and

VO T

I directors’ during the year was as follows:
A

Number of individuals

$1,500,001 - $2,000,000 2

$2,000,001 - $2,500,000 0

$2,500,001 - $3,000,000 2

&5t Total 4

| BEGBIENEESS  OmBIE RIRREFALE ' Total remuneration includes salary, contract-end gratuity and performance-

#Er & (W@ ) - linked pay, if applicable.
P EERENLEA-MEERET  HRIAHRER  ’ There are three directorate staff, namely Director of Regulatory Affairs &
VAR - ITHRES MRS - General Counsel, Director of Operations and Director of Services.
ETHEIIRER Staff Training and Development

BEARYEE RHEMME KRB With rising public expectations on the accountability and
EERAER  HMBERRETEMERE transparency of the EAA, we need to ensure that our staff are
THE  BROEARFR  LAR#ERE  equipped with the necessary competencies to discharge their
SREKFEREEN - EAABAANEIR  duties, respond to the community’s evolving needs, and achieve
K z— EERBANAMBEILRME consistently high levels of performance. As part of its human
T REREE - BIERNIRINEER  resources strategy, the EAA is committed to providing training
KBRS 2 B R AR AR - BN FIZREFTR ©  and development opportunities, including in-house or external
training and development programmes, to all our staff members
in order to help them realise their full potential.
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BRI EERAERBEREREHEN
TWARERRBIS ENIEIIRE - XA
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B L BT R FREIE RSN - BEE
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FrETHFEMBEREE  REMBPE
REEMERE Y RBEEHERNAE
R PRBLAE S 4
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EEREREEERE T 2HAMNER -

ERAEHERTEAEEESALEME
& AREBER RN RNE A
B TEFwRAREEERETIEAM
MEB T TRARBEFIH T ARER

ﬁ%&oaﬁﬁgﬁﬁiﬁm%\ﬁﬁ
(MiTHeEEAE REHRE) HE
I“=§Km% m%%%%~%mm

NREBEIE FEITNEEERNKN
%?E@ﬁ’ﬁ%ﬁ%?%il%%ﬁ
R-EERBFNGRN —LERNOER
g MEIRTEAFEREE  £HE

THERIMEEE T /BE - FHN - KXBIP
BT ETFERLERRTLENFEY
FA (Bright Ideas that Work) & R & bt & -
EETAEER EMAM S e R -
th BB XRFSEL TR

EEEREK The EAA Team !’

To enhance employees’ self-effectiveness and interpersonal
skills, training in Enneagram’s application to the workplace was
organised for all staff, and assertiveness skills for managerial staff
during the year.

Other than training activities arranged by the EAA, staff were also
encouraged to attend self-initiated and reimbursable training
programmes related to their work. All these training activities
served to update their professional knowledge and skills,
stimulate their strategic thinking and prepare them for greater
challenges and achievements ahead.

Communication

The EAA attaches importance to communication between
management and staff. We are dedicated to maintaining and
enhancing effective staff communication through regular
meetings among senior management staff, with the discussions
and decisions made known to all staff to ensure transparency
and understanding of the work of different sections, and through
regular sectional meetings. Management regularly reaches out
to staff through structured communication sessions e.g. CEQ's
Forum and briefing sessions to share key topics such as corporate
plan, pay adjustment and changes in the organisation, and to
inform staff of specific developments within the EAA and to
provide them with opportunities to share their views. Informal
gatherings, such as staff outing and annual party, are organised
each year as well to facilitate staff communication outside the
daily work routines. Staff contests tapping on their creative and
artistic talent while promoting their contribution to the common
good of the organisation e.g. e-Christmas Card Competition and
Bright Ideas that Work, were held during the year.
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The EAA Team

Corporate Social Responsibility

We are committed to integrating corporate social responsibility
("CSR") principles into our daily operations and contributing to the
sustainable development of the community. Key CSR aspects such as
community, environment and workplace, are integrated into all our
operational decisions and practices. Maintaining good CSR practices
that align with our role as a statutory body involves everyone at the
EAA.

A CSR Work Group was set up internally to steer the direction of
the EAA's CSR developments and the oversight of CSR strategies
and activities.

Award

The EAA was awarded the “Caring Organisation”logo by the Hong
Kong Council of Social Service in recognition of its contribution to
social development and commitment to Caring for the Community,
Caring for the Employees and Caring for the Environment.

In addition, the EAA was also acknowledged as a “Manpower
Developer”by the Employees Retraining Board for its outstanding
achievements in manpower training and development.

Futhermore, an Assistant Manager and an Officer of the EAA’s
Complaints Section have been selected as the recipients of “The
Ombudsman’s Awards 2015" for “Officers of Public Organisations”
in recognition of their exemplary performance in customer service
and complaints handling. This was the first time that EAA officers
were commended for their outstanding performance in providing
quality customer service. There were altogether 50 awardees from
various public organisations or Government departments. The
presentation ceremony was held on 29 October 2015.
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The EAA participates in the

“Walkathon 2015"organised by

Mother’s Choice.

HE

EEERR2015F 11 A1 B2NE[ FHH
iz BRI REZRSSTH2015] F
o [BHNRE] E—(AEHBEEERF
KAREHWERRTE - A RERBE
TEIINEBORELZRERANIESR
FZESHAE -

AT TEFFHREZRERPITEE
T HREREX - 2ELEHNE
EREIRBRAEINA-EERER
=
92

\|

RETERBIBHNRE] HES

J

REEBE TEYHEER L EITRFIN
TEHGEE ABM2ETHEER
ne(WRmERE - 25nETH - 2%
TEMT RES) NEBALTFEMER
MZABFEE  UABETEEEH
FFEEVEZRBREMEH

EERE THREI01SRFEEZTE] -
EAA staff receive The Ombudsman’s Awards 2015.

tovoN -

ONNLE REB2ETO Q)

FAMILIES WALKING FOR FAMILIES P
Mother's Choice Walkathon

Community

On 1 November 2015, the EAA participated in the "Walkathon
2015" organised by Mother’s Choice, a non-profit organisation
that provides and promotes loving, nurturing care for babies and
children needing permanent homes, and for single girls and their
family facing crisis pregnancies.

The scenic walk was held along Bowen Road Fitness Trail. A total
of 31 EAA staff, their families and friends participated in the event.
The EAA raised a total of $92,450 for Mother's Choice through the
Walkathon.

To encourage staff to help the underprivileged and fulfil our
corporate social responsibility, we also participated in various
fund-raising activities organised by the Hong Kong Community
Chest (e.g. Dress Casual Day, Love Teeth Day, Skip Lunch Day etc),
Hong Kong Red Cross and donated Christmas gifts to the Home
of Love of the Chinese YMCA of Hong Kong.
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On-the-Job Learning Opportunities

Summer Internship Programme

We offered internship placements for university students who
were undertaking disciplines of studies that were relevant to
the core functions of the EAA during the summer holidays, so
that the interns could add another dimension of experience to
their undergraduate learning. Our supervisors could also gain
experience in coaching the younger generation.

Youth Pre-employment Training Programme

We participated in the Youth Pre-employment Training
Programme organised by the Labour Department by offering on-
the-job learning opportunities to school leavers to brush up their
vocational, interpersonal and communication skills.

EERERERNESTEHEEE -
The management of the EAA presents certificates to the summer interns.
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2015F9R ' EERIMA N THEEE
HRENREAGCREZSEMOTE
A FHH] SEE T UREXFER
BRI - ROBAEHLTERE -
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The EAA participates in the Biz-Green Dress Day to
support energy saving.
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Environment

We have carried out a number of initiatives and implemented
measures to reduce waste and promote recycling. The EAA strives
to improve our environmental protection performance and to
operate as a more environmentally friendly organisation.

To protect the environment and save the earth's resources, we
donated obsolete office furniture and equipment (e.g. computers
and printers) to charitable organisations for recycling. We
encouraged staff to recycle usable materials e.g. paper, toner
cartridges and stationery.

The EAA also participated in the Biz-Green Dress Day jointly
organised by the Construction Industry Council and Hong Kong
Green Building Council as a supporting organisation in September
2015. Staff were encouraged to dress light yet professional to save

air conditioning consumption in the office.

Health and Safety

We are committed to providing healthy and safe work
environments by identifying and reducing work hazards,
and developing improvement measures. We conducted risk
assessment on work stations for all staff over the year and made
the necessary adjustments to individual’s work setting to improve
staff’s occupational safety and health.
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Finance

For the year under review, the EAA reported a surplus of $9.9
million (as compared to a surplus of $9.8 million last year). Income
for the year under review was $83.2 million, an increase of $3.5
million or 4.3% over the previous year. Expenditure for the year
was $73.3 million, an increase of $3.3 million or 4.7% compared to
last year.

Income

Licence fee income reported at $75.2 million, an increase of $2.6
million or 3.6% over the previous year. The increase was mainly
due to the continued growth in the number of licensees during
the year. Examination fee income reported at $6.5 million, an
increase of $0.6 million or 10.1% over the previous year, due
to the increase in the number of candidates registered for the
examination. Interest income reported at $1.5 million, an increase
of $0.3 million or 19.7% over the previous year, due to higher time
deposits interest rates offered by banks.

2% 2%

W

91%

2014/15

2015/16

£ & Examination fees . FIEUA Interest income

Expenditure

Staff costs and office premises and related expenses were two
major expenditure items, accounting for about 67.8% and 14.8%
of our total expenditures respectively. ltems that saw major
increases in expenditure were staff costs, office premises and
related expenses, depreciation, community education expenses,
and service fees for examinations. ltems that saw major decreases
in expenditure were insurance and professional service fees.
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Information Technology

The new Integrated Management Information System has
been in operation since November 2015. The system aimed
at meeting the business needs of the EAA by providing an
integrated information technology (“IT") platform to identify
and monitor the correlation between a spectrum of EAA
functions ranging from complaint handling, enforcement,
disciplinary proceedings, professional development, licensing
and corporate communications. The system containing nine
modules would enable the Administration to assess and enhance
the effectiveness of its efforts through data mining, data analysis
and tracking of workflow and progress such that the EAA could
discharge a more effective, responsive and transparent regulatory
role. The system also improves the internal workflow and work
processes and enables the management to monitor work
progress more effectively and efficiently.

Together with the new Information System, which is mainly for
internal usage, there are other new E-Services such as online
application and payment of licence fees for licence renewal
launched in May 2016.

As with the implementation of any new projects, there are
technical hurdles to overcome. All EAA staff are working diligently
to adapt to the new changes when using the various functions of
the system to ensure it is functioning efficiently and effectively.
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Corporate Governance

ABNBARYEET BAEOKEAEME  In order to foster public confidence in the EAA and for the best
MEREFZSAKSE  EER—EHABNR interests of its stakeholders, the EAA attaches great importance
FRITHEEBER - EETT (MERIEIE  to achieving high standards of corporate governance and a high
B THBER  #FeEMES - 21fF  level of accountability, credibility, fairness and transparency in
N RFERBRE o discharging its duties under the Estate Agents Ordinance (“EAQ”).

BEERRE

Governance Framework

ZEEREE N Committees and Panel
m PENRIEEEZEE = Finance and Strategic Development Committee
" MREEEEY = Disciplinary Committee
m EREEE ® |jcensing Committee
" {EREFARES ® Practice and Examination Committee
" SERRFEG = Professional Development Committee
= 5 28 {fFE /A ® Section 28 Investigation Panel
BB
Supervision and

Guid.ance

il il -
o Y -t
Accountablllty jE&STAEE A{EEN%S A‘ETHiRlTﬁY Checksaand
FRAE
Za Balances
Transparency :
BE Stakeholder = Eﬁiﬁ«@r,ﬁ%ﬁ ® The Ombudsman's Review
(BRFR - (eg. the public, " E5F = Appeals
E=ARAREF) trade and m HNERERIZ ® External Audit
the Government) m RISREMRAT ™ Service Assurance Review
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The EAA Board and Composition

The Board

The Board is the highest decision-making authority of the EAA.
It sets the overall strategic direction and policies of the EAA,
including its corporate plan, annual work plan and annual budget,
and monitors the performance of the Administration.

Board Composition

The constitution of the Board is stipulated by the EAO. The Board
consists of a Chairman, a Vice-chairman, and not more than
18 ordinary members from various sectors of the community,
including the estate agency sector and the Transport and
Housing Bureau. Board members are appointed for a fixed term
by the Chief Executive of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region.

Board members come from varied but relevant backgrounds
with diverse skills, experience and expertise, including real estate
agency, business, legal, surveying, finance, accounting and
academia, and bring to the Board a wide range of experience and
expertise as well as an independent perspective. The combination
of members from within and outside the real estate agency trade
gives the Board a balanced perspective to debate the issues it
faces. Biographical details of the Board members are set out in the
section "Members of the EAA"on pages 20 to 26.

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer ("CEQ")
are held by different persons and their roles are segregated.
The Chairman is responsible for leading the Board in enforcing
the EAO, setting policies for the EAA, and overseeing the
EAA's business and affairs, while the CEO is the administrative
head responsible for executing the decisions of the Board and
Committees and administering the business and affairs of
the EAA.
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Committees and Panel

There are five standing committees and one working panel under
the EAA Board to oversee the various aspects of the EAA work.
Each of the members of a committee is appointed by the EAA
Board and a committee shall consist of at least three members.

The EAA Board may also set up work groups to deal with
particular issues from time to time. When necessary, the EAA may
also appoint other persons (i.e. Board-appointed members) who

2BELEEE -  EHE/NESTENEB T  are not members of the EAA Board to the committees, panel or
fE o work groups.
2015/16%F €  EERERZEENEE The standing committees and working panel of the EAA in
NEBFE 2015/16 included:
MR
FHRBEZEEY KeEzag
Finance and Strategic Disciplinary
Development Committee
Committee
D
%28 BT NE' e
Section 28 }#Bﬁig >
Investigation L|cens.|ng
Panel’ jE&sTAEE AGENES ATJ'THERHY Committee
-
HE¥RRZEE HEREREES
Professional Practice
and Examination
Committee
ETREREESLEE/NHEMNBES  The terms of reference and composition of the standing
KK B G BEHNKgE— o committees and working panel of the EAA are listed in Appendix 1.
' FRRZEE EEFERRTES " Not a standing committee, meet as and when needed.
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SR HERC R Meeting Attendance

BECGEERIBES)  EEREZEM  According to the EAO, the quorum for a meeting of the EAA shall
ETEABELAEERERKE AS  be at least half of the members of the EAA for the time being
M—H(BEEFELBEFR(THAESE  (ncuding the Chairman and the Vice-chairman whether present
B)) e HEEENEERKXEZE—Z  ornot). Each member of the EAA present at a meeting thereof
SR © shall have a vote.

2015/16%FE  EHRF FREZBEBENKHE  In 2015/16, the number of meetings, the average attendance

EEMEGHRE - FHEERFESE  rates and number of papers considered by/at the meetings of

XHgEMT the EAA Board, standing committees and working panel were as
follows:

4

23%E FHHER * REZN
Number of Average XA
meetings held attendance rate* Number of papers
considered
EER 9
The EAA Board 4 /5% 49
MERRREREES
Finance and Strategic 3 85% 16
Development Committee
s . 1 82% 6
Disciplinary Committee
REE<=
il T 5 81% 10
Licensing Committee
HEREAEZESR
Practice and Examination 3 74% 10
Committee
EXEREES
Professional Development 2 77% 8
Committee
5 28 fRFE /N E * . NEM 0
Section 28 Investigation Panel** N/A

* ZEBeRHIE/N TMEEREREERMERE * The attendance of committees and panel includes Board members and

EREEKE ° Board-appointed members.
* ESIEHAT/ AN IFEREES  EEF B ** Section 28 Investigation Panel is not a standing committee and will only
BTG - AE201516EEWEBHE meet as and when needed. In 2015/16, there was no meeting held.
=3
e
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Integrity and Impartiality

Standard of Conduct

We are fully committed to the principle of honesty, integrity and
fair play in the delivery of services to the public.

The EAA is a public body under the Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance. The Board members and employees of the EAA are
regarded as “public servants”for the purpose of that ordinance.

As a statutory body tasked with regulating the practice of the
estate agency trade in Hong Kong, the EAA recognises the
importance of maintaining the highest possible level of quality
service and ethical standards. A high standard of integrity and
conduct is required of all staff to promote and maintain public
confidence. Our staff members are required to comply with
our Code of Conduct which sets out our standards in detail
covering confidentiality, conflicts of interest and acceptance of
advantages. All EAA staff members are briefed on the Code upon
their commencement of duties at the EAA, and may access the
document easily at any time through the EAA's intranet.

The post-employment sanitisation period for the CEO, directors
and managers (including senior managers) are respectively one
year, six months and two months. There is also a prohibition on
all staff, including the CEO and directors, to take the estate agents
or salespersons qualifying examinations during and within two
months after service.
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HREEA Corporate Governance !’

Disclosure of Interest

To foster public confidence in the integrity and impartiality of the
EAA, the EAA adopts a two-tier reporting system on declaration
of interest as a safeguard against potential conflicts of interests.
All Board members and Board-appointed members are required
to register their interests with the EAA upon their appointment
to membership and annually thereafter. They are also required
to declare their interests at all EAA meetings in any subject and
matter under consideration by the EAA, and any conflict of
interest or potential conflict of interest which they may have
with the affairs of the EAA. The register of interests is available for
public inspection.

In addition, all staff of the EAA Administration also have to declare
annually if they have any financial interest, direct or indirect, in
any business or organisation which competes with the EAA, with
which the EAA has business dealings, or which is being regulated
by the EAA.

Regarding interests in land and property, all EAA Board members
and Board-appointed members are required to declare any such
beneficial interests they have in Hong Kong or overseas, without
disclosing details of the addresses. Registrable interests include
land or property owned by a member in his/her name or held
indirectly through another company or person. It also includes
land or property which a member has a right over its disposition
or has any pecuniary interest deriving from it. The managerial staff
of the EAA Administration also adopt a similar requirement in
declaring their interests in land and property.

Estate Agents Authority ® Annual Report 2015/16
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EERBBAREE  EERTYMEEEEETE
R - MARBENEMEE RO LIFERHEEM
The public are kept abreast of the EAA's work and
initiatives through various channels, such as the
mass media, EAA publications and its website.

Accountability and Transparency

We consider accountability one of the fundamental pillars of
corporate governance and have built our corporate structure and
management culture based on this concept. Under the current
structure, the Board is overall accountable for the performance
of the EAA. The Administration is responsible for managing the
EAA’s day-to-day business and is accountable to the Board for its
performance.

To facilitate accountability of the EAA, a Corporate Authorisation
Manual was formulated to provide corporate management
authority guidelines. All members of the EAA, standing
committees, work groups/panels and all employees of the
Administration must act in compliance with the spirit and intent
of the Manual and within the scope of authorities conferred.

To increase the transparency of the EAA's work, the EAA furnishes
the Secretary for Transport and Housing an Annual Report, copies
of which have to be laid before the Legislative Council and are
made available to the public at the EAA’s office and website.



EERNTERAANTEE EERT  Members of the public are also kept abreast of the EAA's work and
MR ETRBBERES  MARENAE  initatives through various communication channels, such as the
HEE BRI TIERIEMEER o mass media, EAA publications and its website.

BHEARRESEBESRNER - B  To facilitate the public to access information about the EAA, the

ERCTmRBGEEAAFER T  EAA has designated the Director of Services as the Access to

BERRARBKBEERF  ZZEE  Information Officer who is responsible for ensuring that requests

NEBRBEEBNCARERSFR IR  for access to information under the EAA’'s Code on Access to

EHERESL - Information are properly dealt with in accordance with specific
procedures.

ERERFBERE

Summary of Applications for Access to Information

HEHE REER EREH
No of Application Information Requested
Applications Outcome
2015/16 0 TES B
N/A N/A
518 - BRIRFARE=EZ S EE
2014/15 1 ’ - Evidence on a complainant's dealings

Declined ; )
with other parties
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Corporate Governance

Checks and Balances

External Audit

The EAA's statement of accounts is subject to audit by an external
auditor. In the year of 2015/16, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu was the
external auditor of the EAA.

The main purpose of the external audit is to provide independent
assurance to the Board that the annual financial statements of
the EAA are fairly stated. The appointment of the EAA's external
auditor is subject to the approval of the Secretary for Transport
and Housing. The Independent Auditor’s Report and Financial
Statements of 2015/16 audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu are
included on pages 100 to 125.

Appeals

Under the EAO, licensees or licence applicants may appeal
against the EAA's decisions concerning refusal to grant or renew a
licence, or its disciplinary sanctions by writing to the Secretary for
Transport and Housing.

The Secretary for Transport and Housing is required to appoint
a panel of persons for the purpose of hearing such appeals. The
appeals are determined by a tribunal, the members of which are
appointed by the Chairman of the panel from members of the
panel.



RIREEER
EEE B 2010% 7 A2 B M A BHRE
EWEEEEE c 2015/16FF RN - HiZE

MREBEFEEENHNEZ  AEERE
REREERKRETE BTN -

ARG IR BT

BIAEERMNBEBKEES AR TT
BKRR - BSB B 2013 F 3118 RIGIRFE
Biae - UERESE BERIFPFIMA BT
BITHRER HAFEHEBEEEER K
HERERIEF  URRBAFE - EEE
E@lﬁtléﬂ%%““ CARBMAORARBE = -

W HLE = A RREIE(F T B BRI -

FAEERETT AR A

EERRATRASMNEZRERBBE

% ° W”E:%E%HX&%?EE%DEE EEPEE
1780 - PAIISR A ERESTE MR EDR

1T BB P AR A5 AR 22

EA—EEaETNEERE EERY
NEHRBERE —ERBEEAHE - BEH
SR R EE IR o

2015/16 F E W) EGE 1B
Mg — o

B3 42 5 513

The Ombudsman’s Review

The EAA came under the jurisdiction of The Ombudsman on 2
July 2010. In the year of 2015/16, a total of four inquiries from
The Ombudsman were received and all of them were closed and
unsubstantiated.

Service Assurance Review

To strengthen the overall corporate governance of the EAA and
to reduce maladministration, a new function of service assurance
was introduced in 2013 to ensure that staff of individual teams
of the EAA did discharge their duties in compliance with the
relevant supervisory procedures, and performance standards.
With the implementation of this function, we are committed to
enhancing our services and would make recommendations on
the improvement of internal controls, as appropriate.

One review study was conducted during the year and the
findings were reported to the CEO and the Board. Appropriate
remedial or follow-up actions were taken or planned to enhance
the EAA's internal control and corporate governance.

Administration’s Performance Standards
As a responsible regulatory body, the EAA has a set of
performance pledges for its services to the public and the

attainment level of the pledges is reviewed regularly.

Details of the pledges and the attainment level in 2015/16 are
listed in Appendix II.
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Qualifying Examinations

The qualifying examinations serve to assess whether persons
who wish to practise in the estate agency trade possess the
requisite knowledge to provide estate agency services. Currently,
there are two types of qualifying examinations: (i) the Estate
Agents Qualifying Examination (“EAQE") and (ii) the Salespersons
Qualifying Examination ("SQE").

The qualifying examinations are administered by the Hong Kong
Examinations and Assessment Authority on behalf of the EAA.

ERERE EAESMAERERNA LS AERIIERERFABHM -

The qualifying examinations serve to assess whether persons who wish to practise in the estate agency trade
possess the requisite knowledge to provide estate agency services.

HERIEEE R *2015/16 3R
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A comparison of the EAQE and SQE is as follows:

wEAEERER

IRE BF AR BF6R

Frequency 4 times a year 6 times a year

AR 3B 2 /NBF 30 B

Examination Time 3 hours 2 hours 30 minutes

B2 H F—ED : 30 KB A RE E—FBH 40 B E

Number of E_EBH 20 iFHE (KEBE—EM F_8 10 FAE (KE—

Questions EEZR D7) EMEZRDHT)
Part 1: 30 stand-alone questions Part 1: 40 stand-alone questions
Part 2: 20 questions based on one Part 2: 10 questions based on one or

or two case studies two case studies

X ZIEER

Format Multiple-choice questions

BROE BHIRDFEE 60%

Pass Mark At least 60% of correct answers in each part

AENE B MAZTEEMERER
REAREXBEERZEAATHET S
BEEBNRE - AP RECERER
1) REKIEER - (BRSFTRI) - BB
T U REAEAR I EREERNE
BADI N METOE

AEAE 200 3B —1E = R 3 E = F
T EAAAEERMEREREES

EEBNAEDE  BRY TS MM
R FTRARBHER  BEHEAR

T BFEMEEENMERFHMERS
E'u&mﬁﬁﬁiMiAEM$mF
RETER U ENEREENEXIEST

’

Part 1 of the examination paper is intended to test candidates
knowledge of various parts of the syllabi of the EAQE and SQE,
including the EAO and its subsidiary legislation, the Code of Ethics,
practice circulars, and other relevant laws and practices applicable
to the estate agency practice.

Part 2 of the examination paper, which contains one or two case
studies, is intended to test in an integrated way the practical
knowledge expected of estate agents or salespersons, including
interpretation of land search, use of prescribed forms, the
requirements under the regulatory regime, other practical issues
such as conveyancing and tenancy, and the ethical standards and
professional integrity required of estate agents or salespersons in
the performance of estate agency work.
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. The Road to the Estate Agency Profession

M EAEEE R

Since licensed estate agents could undertake an estate agency
business in addition to being an estate agent, the questions in the
examination paper of the EAQE also test the knowledge expected
of estate agents in property valuation, effective management of
agency and supervision of salespersons in the compliance of the
requirements under the regulatory regime. These areas are not
included in the syllabus of the SQE.

Number of Candidates

A total of 4,742 candidates registered for the EAQE and 7,052
candidates registered for the SQE in 2015/16, which was an
increase of about 0.7% for the former and an increase of about
21.7% for the latter, as compared to those of the previous year.

Compared to that in 2014/15, the number of candidates actually
sitting the EAQE increased by about 0.3% to 4,275 and increased
by about 20.6% to 6,126 in the case of SQE.

In 2015/16, the average pass rate for the EAQE and SQE were
33.7% and 45.5%, as against 42.7% and 48.2% in 2014/15.

Number of Examination Candidates and Pass Rates of Qualifying Examinations

wEREEREZSR

Estate Agents Qualifying Examination

exsaRER

Salespersons Qualifying Examination

2013/14

2013/14

2014/15

2015/16

2014/15

2015/16

(33.7%)

4,275
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ZHERE Educational Background of Candidates

—WEF - BABTLHNSEFEEZLERE  Asin the previous year, a significant number of candidates with
EEWES - BFBSEM - Kt RE  higher educational levels sat for the qualifying examinations.
™ AEERSE2FENELAMNASKERIK  Statistics indicated that the pass rates of candidates with higher
BRFHE L BE o H2015/16FEFEHESL  educational qualifications were higher than those of candidates
(88K EANELEDR - EEARFEHIA  with lower educational qualifications, which was quite logical. In
FEFNLROE228%  ERMERIE  2015/16, the percentage of candidates registered for the SQE who
BEES BERESUALEFNEL were of tertiary or above educational level was about 28%, and
LERBIH A41% - T 2014/15F EHELE  that for the EAQE was about 41%, as compared to 28% and 43%
A5 511 /5 28% K 43% o in2014/15.

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

wEEZHE WEZHE wEZHE
B tb= ERE b= EBEE b= BRE
Education % of Pass rate % of Pass rate % of Pass rate
Level registered registered registered
candidates candidates candidates

h
q; s 31.6% 22.7% 30.4% 31.0% 30.5% 24.6%
AR
HEAE 6.6% 33.4% 8.0% 34.4% 8.0% 26.8%
ETR%A:Q F6 or F.7
1185 a¥
Estate Agents .
Qualifyir?g AERALE
Examination Tertiary or 41.4% 41.4% 43.4% 42.9% 41.2% 34.6%
above
BRI
Uitk ov?m 20.4% 39.9% 18.2% 43.3% 20.3% 31.7%
Fh
Fs 43.4% 31.6% 403% 36.2% 37.8% 35.4%
NEA A
B EPF/6\ EFP7 14.7% 32.8% 18.0% 37.5% 19.1% 35.8%
P N OO0orr.
BEREH
Sal .
Sty | KW
Examination Tertiary or 26.6% 46.0% 27.9% 53.6% 27.8% 49 4%
above
BRI
Unkno nn 15.3% 36.3% 13.8% 43.5% 15.3% 36.2%
W
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. The Road to the Estate Agency Profession

Occupational Background of Candidates

Candidates included students and people from a wide range of
occupational backgrounds, including property management,
construction and surveying, banking, accounting, retail and
wholesale business. About 51% of the candidates sat the

ZAHATHIBS51% -
examination for the first time.
EREERZR
Estate Agents Qualifying Examination
H HERIEE 21.2%
Estate agency trade
] R_i7/ g5 RE 95%
Banking/accounting/investment
=& 9.4%
Retail/wholesale business
MEER 5.1%
Property management
. B 4.4%
Students
g ERAE 4.0%
Construction/surveying
B "% 3.2%
Insurance
B BB AEERS 2.9%
Education/social service
W AL ER 1.8%

EXEERES

Salespersons Qualifying Examination

H TE 14.5%
Retail/wholesale business
24 12.2%

. Students
MEER 10.5%
Property management
R7 & RE 5.8%
Banking/accounting/investment

[ BIE, B 5.0%
Hotel/catering

] Rz 3.8%
Insurance

B 2B dERE 25%
Education/social service

| EENE 2.5%
Construction/surveying

N RBE¥%E 1.9%

Salesperson-trainee
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Others
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Number of Attempts at Examinations

WENRBERZES

Estate Agents Qualifying Examination

12.7%

47.3%

EXREEREH

Salespersons Qualifying Examination

-- 15.1% g
2%

53.3%

BREE FEREE FEZIRSA LEE B
First attempt Second attempt Third attempt or above Unknown
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Licensing

To be granted a licence, an individual must have attained 18 years
of age, completed an educational level of Form Five of secondary
education or its equivalent, passed the relevant qualifying
examination' and be considered “fit and proper”.

An individual may apply for a salesperson’s licence or an estate
agent’s licence (individual). Companies may only apply for an
estate agent’s licence (company). Holders of a salesperson’s licence
may only work for licensed estate agents while there is no such
restriction for holders of an estate agent’s licence. Each estate agent
is required to, before carrying out any estate agency business at any
place under a particular business name, apply for a statement of
particulars of business (“SPOB”) for that place and name.

The number of individual licences as at 31 March 2016 increased
by 3.6% over that of 31 March 2015 to 37,138. The number of
company licences and SPOBs were respectively at 3,226 and
6,364, representing an increase of 1.2% and an increase of 0.6%
respectively over those of last year.

' The qualifying examination must have been passed within 12 months immediately
before the date of an application for the grant of a licence.
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. The Road to the Estate Agency Profession

Among the 37,138 individual licences, 20,005 were salesperson’s
licences and 17,133 were estate agent’s licences (individual).

During the year, the EAA granted 3,278 new individual licences,
an increase of 6% compared to that of the previous year.

The EAA vets each licence application to ensure compliance with
the relevant laws. In the year under review, 113 applications were
refused for different reasons, such as applicants not having the
required educational qualifications or not being considered “fit
and proper” persons to be granted, or hold or continue to hold a
licence.

A licence may be revoked if the licensee is no longer eligible to
continue to hold a licence. During the year, a total of 56 licences
were revoked by the Licensing Committee because the relevant
licensees no longer met the licensing requirements.

Actions Taken Against Licensees by the Licensing Committee

REVVTE

Types of Actions
FERRIR BT nfife

Attachment of conditions to licence

RsHR R

Revocation of licence

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16
154 123 123
27 45 56

A
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RNEE - BEE R 3278 @ R AR E AR
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During the year, the EAA granted 3,278 new
individual licences, an increase of 6% compared to
that of the previous year.



RIBEKNRIER Size of Operations

AZHMERBEBDANUNRIBLL  The bulk of estate agency operations remained small in scale.
o BIE2016F3H31H » 94.2%MALE  As at 31 March 2016, 94.2% of agencies operated as single-shop
ERAFAX—RES MRARALRAME  businesses and less than 1% had five or more shops.
A EE RIE D% ©

BEFE=FERREEFBHPEHE
Number of Licences and SPOBs in the Past Three Years

40,000
37,138
35,450 35:859/D
B
U -
30,000
20,005
18,923 19,197 —
20,000 : B C
l-F { 4.
16,527 16,662 17133
10,000
6,248 6,329 6,364
3,036 3,189 3,226
0 t t t
31/3/2014 31/3/2015 31/3/2016
EE BRI () b EE AR (B AR (i) E B A KRB ARSI () + (i) hERIE (R E) R . EEFIEHAE
Salesperson's Estate agent's licence Total number of Estate agent's licence SPOBs
licence (i) (individual) (ii) individual licences (i) + (ii) (company)
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BE=ZFHALNVEARREE

New Licences (Individual) in the Past Three Years

2013/14 # 2 Total

3,370
993 2100

2014/15 # 2 Total

3,093
948 2330

2015/16 #Z Total

3,278
4,000 5,000
ﬁ B2 B 2R Salesperson's licence ﬁ AR (fE A ) H2HR Estate agent's licence (individual)

B AWEREKE (BE20165F3A311H)

Educational Level of Licensees (as at 31/3/2016)

WEREEA) BRRIEEA EEBRBIFEA =pe

Holders of estate agent's licence (individual) Holders of salesperson's licence Overall

3.3%

. AR A LA Below F5

[ = A s A% 2R Completed F5 or equivalent ARHELIA L Tertiary or above
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FERANER (BIZ20165F3A31H)
Age of Licensees (as at 31/3/2016)
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12% / / \ \\
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2% \-
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. AR (A R RRIEH A . EEERBREA

Holders of estate agent's licence (individual) Holders of salesperson's licence

TH=
C=N=

8 A PR EA @G (BZ 201653 H31H)

Licensees' Choice of Language in Communication (as at 31/3/2016)

R (EA) RREEA EEEMREEA et
Holders of estate agent's licence (individual) Holders of salesperson's licence Overall
13% 5.6% | 9%

[ 3 Chinese I English
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RIEBEBHLEEERN (BE20165F3831H)
Mode of Operation of Estate Agency Businesses (as at 31/3/2016)

BRARLEE
Limited Companies* |
209 MRS E
B ﬁ e
Partnerships e SFUES
1,577 6,364

BELE

Sole proprietorships

0 1,000 2,000 3,000 4,000 5,000

* 3226 AR AIREALLE
* Operated by 3,226 company licensees

RIEBHEBHRE (BZE2016F3A310)
Size of Operation of Estate Agency Businesses (as at 31/3/2016)

BB E *

Number of shops*

BRARIRE
Limited companies
AR
Partnerships

: : 1,451 46 7 1 1 0 0 0
Sole proprietorships

« BSEHIERRE
* je.SPOBs
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Scheme on Mutual Recognition of
Professional Qualifications of Estate Agents in
the Mainland and Hong Kong

The EAA and the China Institute of Real Estate Appraisers and
Agents ("CIREA") entered into a 5-year agreement on 3 November
2010 to lay down the foundation for the mutual recognition
of professional qualifications of estate agents in the Mainland
and Hong Kong. The arrangement was intended to promote
professional exchanges and cooperation between practitioners
of the estate agency trade in the Mainland and Hong Kong, and
to facilitate the long-term development of the industry of both
sides.

According to the agreement, the EAA and the CIREA will
each nominate a certain number of qualified estate agents to
participate in tailor-made training courses and examinations
organised by the other party within the 5-year agreement period.

Since June 2015, frequent dialogues and discussions have been
engaged by the EAA and the CIREA on exploring the possibility
of extending the mutual recognition scheme for another five
years. The CIREA has indicated that as there are changes in the
registration arrangement for the estate agency profession in
the Mainland, they could only confirm the details of the new
agreement after Mainland Authorities have finalised the relevant
legislation and implementation details.

As at 31 March 2016, 143 Hong Kong estate agents held a
registration certificate issued by the CIREA and 17 Mainland estate
agents held an estate agent’s licence issued by the EAA, both
pursuant to the arrangement.
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Ethics and Regulations

The EAA established under the Estate Agents Ordinance ("EAQ")
is empowered to, inter alia, requlate and control the practice of
estate agents and salespersons and to take such actions as the
EAA considers appropriate or necessary to promote integrity
and competence amongst, or maintain or enhance the status of,
estate agents and salespersons. Estate agents and salespersons
must comply with the EAO and its subsidiary legislation, including
in particular the Estate Agents Practice (General Duties and Hong
Kong Residential Properties) Regulation in respect of Hong Kong
residential properties. They should also comply with the Code of
Ethics and the practice circulars issued by the EAA.

Legal Services

The EAA reviews the practices of the trade and issues practice
circulars to provide guidelines and directives on estate agency
practice from time to time, to enable licensees to comply with
their duties under the law. In the year, four circulars were issued.

In light of the public concern about the suspected inflation
of the number of registrations of intent in the sales of first-
hand residential properties by licensees through submitting
registrations of intent for themselves in a development in which
they are involved in the sale and/or purchase thereof, the EAA
issued a practice circular requiring estate agency companies
which are involved in the sale and/or purchase of first-hand
residential properties in a development and individual licensees
who work for them to make a declaration if they also submit
for themselves registrations of intent in that development. To
assist the trade to comply with the requirements of the practice
circular, “Questions and Answers” on pertinent issues and samples
of declaration forms were provided at the EAA website for the
trade's reference.
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To remind licensees that they are required to observe and
comply with the relevant provisions in the EAO and its subsidiary
legislation when they handle the sale and purchase or leasing of
car parking spaces, a practice circular on “Sale and Purchase or
Leasing of Car Parking Spaces” was issued to provide guidelines
to licensees on the proper practice and measures to be adopted
with regard to ascertaining whether there is any restriction that
the car parking space concerned can only be used for the parking
of vehicles belonging to the residents or occupiers of the building
when they deal with the sale and purchase or leasing of a car
parking space alone. To enhance the trade's understanding and
compliance of the practice circular, a set of related “Questions and
Answers"was uploaded on the EAA website.

The EAA also issued practice circulars respectively on “Proper
Authorisation by Absent Contracting Party” for giving guidance
to licensees when dealing with any person claiming to be the
authorised representative of an absent contracting party in a
sale and purchase or leasing transaction, and on “Completion
of Provisional Tenancy Agreement and Tenancy Agreement” to
remind licensees to exercise due care and due diligence when
preparing tenancy agreements for their clients.
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The Section handled 5,450 enquiries on estate
agency practices related issues during the period
and took follow-up actions in response to those
enquiries.
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Complaints and Enforcement

Complaints and Enquiries Handling

The Complaints Section continued to monitor the work
processes and procedures to ensure work quality and complaint
investigation efficiency. Since the introduction of the new
performance pledge for investigation of non-compliances on
24 November 2014, the Complaints Section and the Disciplinary
Section have been working closely to review the whole complaint
handling process with a view to setting up a new performance
pledge in future to cover the entire process of complaint
investigation and disciplinary proceedings. Furthermore, the
Complaints Section continued to make use of a knowledge
management system/database to retain useful knowledge that
helps to enhance complaint handling effectiveness and efficiency.
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Complaint Cases

(EES {5

Number of Cases

800
600
400

200

2013/14

BRENHMER
Received

* FRERNERSS AEFERENESR
BRI ES -

In 2015/16, the Complaints Section received 339 complaints. The
majority were related to second-hand residential properties, with
52 cases, or about 15%, related to first-hand residential properties.
During the period, 405 cases were concluded, of which 158, or
about 39%, were substantiated. Among the 158 substantiated
cases, 14 or 9% concerned first-hand residential properties. Key
allegations of the substantiated cases included providing false
or misleading property information, mishandling/failing to
explain the provisional agreement for sale and purchase (or the
provisional tenancy agreement), and failing to enter into estate
agency agreements with clients or to explain the estate agency
agreements to clients.

The Section also handled 5,450 enquiries on estate agency
practices related issues during the period and took follow-up
actions in response to those enquiries.

2014/15 2015/16

B e Az *
Completed*

EREEREEBEXNLIEN FLAERTESRENEE - AN B R miTiRER R

* Some cases completed in a year were brought forward from previous years. The figures include prima facie cases referred to and dealt
with by the Disciplinary Committee and non-prima facie cases disposed of by the Complaints and Enforcement Sections.
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* Some cases completed in a year were brought forward from previous years. The figures include prima facie cases referred to and dealt
with by the Disciplinary Committee and non-prima facie cases disposed of by the Complaints and Enforcement Sections.
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A completed case will be classified as "Substantiated" if any of the allegations involved therein has been concluded as "Substantiated".
Includes cases which were curtailed, withdrawn or not proven.

Compliance Inspections and Investigations

In 2015/16, the Enforcement Section continued to revise and
improve its enforcement action plan to put in place stringent
policing action on first-sale venues and its ancillary areas to
ensure licensees' good order and discipline during first-sale
activities. During the reporting period, efforts continued to
be made on conducting educational visits to newly opened
estate agency shops to ensure compliance. Cyber patrols had
also been stepped up to closely monitor online portals and
their advertisements to reduce breaches of an advertisement-
related nature and to ensure the Enforcement Section's effective
regulatory role. The Section also made continuous effort to review
and improve its covert operations with an attempt to achieve the
maximum proactive enforcement action especially in areas such
as detecting unlicensed estate agency work and loan offering in
first-sale sites.
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FR T HRETTT 2685 8%E - & During the reporting period, the Section conducted 2,685
¢1L2O8A&xsﬁﬁﬁi——qiﬁiﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ’ H#:  compliance inspections, of which 1,208 were at first-sale sites
1477 KB KEHENRIEEES - 917730 and 1,477 at estate agency shops. The Section also carried
R4S E B EETTT 607 ) 0HE » BLA L out 607 inspections of online advertisements. As a result of
178 PITEHEP177RSEEM EE  these inspections, the Section instigated investigations into
LEHEEMERERERAS - thoh - L 17 suspected non-compliance cases on online advertisement-
1TEBEEIR 15 ?——?%ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁé$iﬁFﬁﬁI related breaches. The Section also detected a total of 15 cases of
ENEZE  EF B = AEMEETE suspected unlicensed estate agency work in which three persons
HRERANNEE S FAES - were convicted of a criminal offence. The remaining cases were
still under police investigation.

KEITE
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Number of Inspections

1,809

2000

1,477

1500

1000

500

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

— TR ERIEEH

First-sale sites* Estate agency shops

* BIRESATER - ERHER R AN -

* Includes the development sites, sales offices and vicinity areas.
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Upholding the Professional Standard

The Section also conducted investigations on 78 cases during the
period, with six cases on first-sale sites inspections, 34 cases on
estate agency shops, 22 cases from cyber and newspaper patrols
and 16 cases of a miscellaneous nature. Out of the 78 cases, 14
related to first-hand residential properties. During the period, the
Section completed 58 cases, of which 41 were substantiated. Out
of the 41 cases, four related to first-hand residential properties.

DIRIREF)

Enforcement Cases Opened (including enforcement action plus complaints from public)

(FES:¢E|

Number of Cases
80
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40 —
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REEBXHOEZE  WRI9REEIL
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REHEZE  WERMUMEESHFEEEN
BE=PNIE -3
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TR A A%
Cases opened by Enforcement Section

In 2015/16, the Enforcement Section also conducted
investigations into 97 licence applications in which the applicants
were suspected of making false declarations or providing false
documents in the licence application or licence renewal process.
In addition, the Section also looked into 19 licence applications
submitted by existing licensees and new applicants, who had
criminal records, to consider whether they met the statutory
requirement of being “fit and proper” persons.
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Y RERBERBRRELEREPIREERENIFEASERBEFANALS
Investigations into Licensees/Licence Applicants who were suspected of Making False
Declarations or Providing False Documents in the Application Process

[EES-¢=!

Number of Cases

120 111 97

100 |— 77 84

80 — 68

60 —

40 — 21
20 —
0
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U me0Es eceived U esmmnEs: completed

* FATRNERBS REFRENER -

* Some cases completed in a year were brought forward from previous years.

HELFLENFRARREAFBANAE

Investigations into Licensees/Licence Applicants who had Criminal Records

[EES 2§

Number of Cases

30
25
20
15
10

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

U senEs received U esmmEs: completed

* FRTRNERD HEFRENER -

* Some cases completed in a year were brought forward from previous years.
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Disciplinary Actions

Inquiry Hearings

Where the EAA's Chief Executive Officer ("CEQ") has reason to
believe that a licensee has failed to comply with the EAO and/or
its subsidiary legislation; or is not eligible to hold or continue to
hold a licence; or has failed to comply with a specified condition
attached to his licence, a submission shall be made by the CEO to
the Disciplinary Committee for consideration if an inquiry hearing
should be conducted.

If the Disciplinary Committee is satisfied that the complaint or
submission is well-founded, it may exercise disciplinary powers
including admonishing or reprimanding the licensee concerned,
attaching/varying a specified condition attached to his licence,
suspending/revoking his licence, imposing a fine and making a
costs order.

In 2015/16, the Disciplinary Committee adjudicated 186 cases,
of which 183 were substantiated (i.e. 98.4%). As a result, a total of
190 licensees were disciplined, among whom 127 were individual
licensees' and 63 company licensees.

During the same period, 22 licences were suspended for periods
ranging from seven days to 12 months. Licensees disciplined were

B 2mas s -
A staged inquiry hearing.

" Including sole-proprietors and partners of estate agency firms.
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found to have been engaged in unprofessional conduct such as
making misrepresentations, failing to protect and promote the
interests of their clients, or failing to exercise due care and due
diligence.

A total of 123 licensees were fined, with the fines ranging from
$500 to $90,000.

New Scheme for Disciplinary Cases

Apart from the inquiry hearings, certain straight-forward and
prevalent breaches under the EAQ, Estate Agents Practice (General
Duties and Hong Kong Residential Properties) Regulation and
Estate Agents (Licensing) Regulation were dealt with under the
New Scheme for Disciplinary Cases (“the Scheme”) introduced
since 1 January 2014. Under the Scheme, licensees committing
the eight specified breaches for the first time as from 1 January
2014 would, subject to the terms of the Scheme, not be
disciplined but any subsequent breaches within a two-year
period might attract more severe sanctions.

A total of 69 licensees were invited to opt for the Scheme in
2015/16. Among the 69 licensees who have replied, 67 opted for
the Scheme, representing a participation rate of 97.1%.

Number of Inquiry Hearings with Decision Handed Down

2013/14

2014/15

2015/16

| | |
T T T T

200 300 400 500

ﬁ R B Number of hearings
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2015/16 FEF BEHREF *

Common Types of Non-compliance in 2015/16*

1. RAEPRHERNYE/ XFER REEZRETEPHNMER R HERNERL:
AEREFPRHEMEER
Providing wrong property or transaction information to client or failure to verify the 34
accuracy of property or transaction information provided to client; failure to supply
property information to client

2. BHERIGRELES  AESEHFLEERNEMELES  EHERESETH
=F A
B A
Issuing a false or misleading advertisement; advertising without vendor's prior written

consent; advertising in contravention of vendor's instruction

3. REBETIHEM REMER / MAEFRETHEMER / BRI EMNAS
Failure to conduct a land search; failure to supply the land search result/explain its 22
contents to the purchaser/tenant

4. RERFETARBNIETRIREETIIARE / BEBETRAREITEBRAL / HFE
RAZ PR X 4
Failure to complete the prescribed form/supply it to a person/accompany it by such
documents as directed or specified in the form

5. REERT-FERNEER
Offering a loan to a prospective purchaser of a first-sale property

6. AAERBHRRENNZERISN  AERFRAXZJFERERHZ /B0 /B
HAOMALTEEERS /B ARET / HEENRE
Failure to ascertain the landlords' identities prior to the signing of the provisional
tenancy agreement; failure to ensure that the signatory was duly authorised by the

vendor/lessor or purchaser/tenant to sign the provisional agreement for sale and
purchase/tenancy agreement/ provisional tenancy agreement

7. REBREPIIMMERIERHZ

Failure to enter into an estate agency agreement with clients

8. ANEERIRNMEEH
Failure to possess prescribed property information
9. ANBBITRAEFIEHADMEEHAG K / KIAZEFATIRE BAE
Failure to give and/or set out in writing the cash rebate as promised to clients
10, LHET /AR ERERLGEROERN BEE R / RREEN E5F
Arranging for the purchaser/tenant to sign a provisional agreement for sale and 10
purchase/provisional tenancy agreement with certain terms of the agreement left blank

27

* Eo R EER S B RERER -

* There was more than one type of non-compliance in some inquiry hearing cases.

80 HERIZEE B » 2015/16 1]
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Actions Taken Against Licensees or Former Licensees*

B RN A KRR A

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Number of licensees or former licensees involved o7 423 368
TEhEE
Type of actions'
e/ R
Admonishment/reprimand 3% 295 193
=%
gz 237 179 123
Fine

E\zﬂj\ \ |K 2
TEREBR B A1 - . i 308 738 93
Attachment of conditions to licence
Rk 0 S AR
E.H?f%féﬁ??,m . % 10 2
Suspension of licence
BsERE R 28" 45% 56"

Revocation of licence

EEAERD - SYE—IFEARIFEARER AT -

In some cases more than one action was imposed on the same licensee or former licensee.

BRI RN H R AR A BT AN - ELBARIBEMR B AN

Some conditions were attached upon the granting of licences and others attached thereafter.

AETTBRRE GOERIRIRE) HEAMEHNFIR - Eh BN IR TIBNLENLE - BNREFRAFEHER -

These actions were taken pursuant to powers under the EAO. Some actions may be disciplinary in nature and others not. Some cases
were carried over from previous years.

V7 FRERRERAEREZEESIT - BARKMATBRSEENERGN  —FRHEERERBLEEZESHT -

27 cases were decided by the Licensing Committee on the ground that the licensees concerned no longer meet the relevant licensing
requirements, and the remaining one case was decided by the Disciplinary Committee.

ELMHRRNEROBEREESHT - BAREREA B SEBENE IR

These cases were decided by the Licensing Committee on the ground that the licensees concerned no longer meet the relevant
licensing requirements.
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Upholding the Professional Standard

Professional Development

It is one of the EAA’s missions to raise the competence of the
trade. Through implementing a voluntary Continuing Professional
Development (“CPD") Scheme, the EAA strives to enhance the
professional knowledge of estate agency practitioners, so as to
meet growing public expectations.

Continuing Professional Development Scheme

The EAA has been implementing the CPD Scheme on a voluntary
basis since May 2005. Under the CPD Scheme, licensees are
encouraged to earn not less than 12 CPD points within a
12-month CPD period, with at least six points from core subjects.
Licensees who achieved their CPD attainment targets would be
awarded the CPD Attainment Symbols. With effect from the CPD
period commencing 1 October 2013, Premium CPD Attainment
Symbols are to be presented to licensees who achieved their CPD
attainment targets for three consecutive and five consecutive
CPD periods. CPD activities are organised either by the EAA itself,
the Government, trade associations or educational and training
institutions as endorsed by the Professional Development
Committee ("PDC").

Modes of learning include attending approved seminars and
multi-session training activities; participating in web-based
learning activities; teaching approved CPD courses; and taking
part in pro bono work. Generally, one CPD point is awarded for
each contact hour of classroom or web-based learning activity.
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BEIEHAEMNEAE ANB %A L Holders of Statement of Particulars of Business (“SPOB”) with
MR EBEFIFEREEEITEIME  over 80% of their licensed employees having achieved the CPD
DESR TEEBERBRAEEEE  attainment target would be presented with the CPD Mark for

BFRTHRE o Fstate Agencies.

2%

Achievement

E—EEERREIFEEREET RSN BRIFEA

Licensees achieving CPD attainment target for one CPD period*

FEE = (AEERREIRETEEEHEINED ZROFFRA
(B 2013410 A1 BiEWEBR RS

Licensees achieving CPD attainment target for three consecutive
CPD periods (with effect from the CPD period commencing 1
October 2013)

BB AEERBCEIIFER AT N2 D ERNFRA
(B 2013410 A1 BRRHEERRFABTH)

Licensees achieving CPD attainment target for five consecutive
CPD periods (with effect from the CPD period commencing 1
October 2013)

B 80% #ihifE BiERHBE R EETENED ERNEEFS
FHAERHAA

Holders of SPOB with over 80% of licensed employees having
achieved the CPD attainment target

g )
Award

FEFEREEEIETRE
CPD Attainment Symbol

BT EEMERT
1RE —RE

Premium CPD Attainment
Symbol - Silver Symbol

FEEREEABIEMERT
RE—2F

Premium CPD Attainment
Symbol - Gold Symbol

HER IR RS RT
%
CPD Mark for Estate Agencies

* SEAFEEEEEHREAE2EA AT 101 HREBFIF/30AHLE -

* Each CPD period shall be a 12-month period commencing 1 October each year and ending on 30 September the following year.
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Upholding the Professional Standard

Premium CPD Attainment Symbol Design
Competition

To promote recognition of the licensees’ continuous effort
in enhancing their knowledge through participation of CPD
activities, an open competition for the design of the Premium
CPD Attainment Symbols was organised in December 2015.
The response to the competition was overwhelming with
design entries received from participants from different sectors,
including estate agency, construction, surveying and property
management, and also students. Winning designs were selected
by a professional judging panel based on the creativity, originality,
popular appeal, inspiration, sophistication and practicality of the
entries.

BETFERBE2EERNRAN BMBEHERERN  HELE
BstEdn

A professional judging panel assesses the entries based on the
creativity, originality, sophistication and practicality etc.

The concept behind the Champion design is about the key to
success. Through continuous participation in the CPD Scheme
and achieving the CPD attainment target, licensees can enrich
their knowledge in the property business and receive the
Premium CPD Attainment Symbols.

The Champion design, with modifications if required, would be
adopted as the Premium Symbols, which would be printed on
the awardees’ Estate Agent cards and business cards. The physical
prints of the Premium CPD Attainment Symbols would also be
made available as small badges for licensees to wear.
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BE=FNFEEXEETH
CPD Activities in the Past Three Years
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The prize presentation ceremony of the EAA’s Premium CPD
Attainment Symbol Design Competition was held in March 2016.

Statistics of CPD Activities

During the year, 336 sessions of CPD activities were organised by
various activity providers with 24,970 enrolments. A total of 51,378
CPD points were attained. Among the 336 sessions held, 104 (31%
of the total number of sessions) were organised by the EAA with
16,267 enrolments (about 65% of total enrolments). Compared to
the previous year, the total number of enrolments decreased by
11%, while the number of enrolments of activities conducted by
the EAA and providers other than the EAA decreased by 7% and
19% respectively. Practitioners’ level of participation in training
activities dropped as they had to focus more on promoting
business, particularly for the sales of first-hand residential
properties which were launched at very short notice.

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16
EEIEE S8 AR EEEE EE:E NN SEEEE 2P NN
No. of No. of No. of No. of No. of No. of
Activities Enrolments | Activities Enrolments | Activities Enrolments
EER
EAA 79 18,698 99 17,408 104 16,267
MO EE (IR RSR 347 14,264 298 10,663 224 8,483
Estate Agency Trade
Hofib 3 e kerg
Other Providers 19 369 12 136 8 220
“REL
445 33,331 409 28,207 336 24,970
Total
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BE=FNFEEXEKTH
CPD Activities in the Past Three Years

EENEE
Number of Activities
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Highlights of CPD Activities Organised
by the EAA

Estate Agents Ordinance, EAA Guidelines, Legal and
Practical Knowledge Relating to Estate Agency Work

To help licensees familiarise themselves with the EAQ, its
subsidiary legislations, the Code of Ethics and practice circulars, the
law and practice relating to property transactions; and consolidate
licensees’ practical skills and knowledge on the matters they have
to attend to during property transactions, 43 sessions of seminars
were held on the subjects, attracting 5,032 enrolments (about
31% of the total enrolments of EAA CPD activities).

Professional Ethics

To promote integrity and ethical practices among licensees,
seminars were jointly organised by the EAA, the Independent
Commission Against Corruption (“ICAC"), the Narcotics Division
of the Security Bureau and the Joint Financial Intelligence Unit.
During the year, six seminars were held to brief licensees on
legislations in relation to anti-money laundering, ways to identify
and report suspicious cases, corruption prevention measures and
the subject provision of the Best Practice Checklist published
by the EAA and ICAC regarding best practices for handling
property transactions, proper governance and internal control,
and effective human resources management. Some 338 licensees
attended these seminars (about 2% of the total enrolments of
CPD activities).
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[ERBZE]RIEH “All You Can Ask” Series

EEBUBREEBANRERB - KB To address more closely the licensees’ concerns by answering
015FHHRIBERAL] &% UM  their queries, interactive programmes which were formatted
LR EREEEFTEH - 2HAE as "“Questions and Answers” sessions titled the “All You Can Ask”
BT 2 EEEM - L KFLEIT  series were organised in 2015. This new interactive format was
THHHEE - TB1246 AR M(K)1E  well received by the participants. Seven seminars under this series
EEREEREEEENEIXMARA  were organised, attracting 1,246 enrolments (about 8% of total
8%) © enrolments of EAA CPD activities).

FA- SEPRIBS BRI T BGHEFTEER
EE 0 E]24,970 NIRZN ©

During the year, 336 sessions of CPD activities were
organised by various activity providers with 24,970
enrolments.

BRI B

PRS- ClE4RIT15-01(CR) ) :

BHRRENEZ HEEERBEHEBREE - A
REFFRAFERIZYE R ZHE R AE A o

CPD Seminars with topics on the law and practice
relating to property transactions are organised to
consolidate licensees' practical skills and knowledge.

HERIEEE R *2015/16 3R
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Practical Business and Soft Skills

Practical business and soft skills are conducive to raising
the general standards and inner qualities of estate agency
practitioners. External professional training providers were
engaged to organise seminars on communication, negotiation
and relationship building skills to expand licensees’ capabilities in
business development and provision of quality customer services.
During the year, 10 seminars on practical business and soft
skills were held, attracting 1,440 enrolments (about 9% of total
enrolments of EAA CPD activities).

Topical Issues

The EAA invited academics from tertiary institutions and experts
from professional bodies to brief licensees on topical issues, with
an aim to raise licensees’ general standards and awareness of
the latest developments of some subjects which might affect
the property market and estate agency work. During the year,
16 special topic seminars were organised covering topics on
unauthorised building works, revitalising industrial buildings,
mortgage programmes, green building, energy management
and saving measures, deeds of mutual covenants and building
management, saleable area, planning of residential property
development projects by developers and inspection of residential
properties. These seminars were well received by licensees with
a total of 3,259 enrolments (about 20% of the total enrolments of
EAA CPD activities).
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e-Learning

Ever since the EAA launched the e-Quiz in 2005, licensees are
provided an alternative to broaden their practical knowledge
by undertaking online CPD activities at anytime and anywhere.
To further accommodate the training needs of licensees and
enrich their online learning experience, the EAA launched
an e-Learning platform in 2012. During the year, the EAA has
developed a number of e-Learning programmes. Also, the short-
term incentive allowing licensees to earn bonus CPD points
through completion of a certain number of the EAA's e-Learning
programmes introduced last year was extended for one CPD
period from 1 October 2015 to 30 September 2016 to further
encourage participation of the EAA's e-Learning programmes. In
addition, for licensees' convenience, a mobile version of the EAA'S
e-Learning programmes was made available since February 2016.
During the year, the EAA’s e-Learning programmes attracted
1,372 enrolments (about 8% of the total enrolments of EAA CPD
activities).

26%

74% a

2015/16

75%

2014/15

[N FERZD
Core Non-core
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Language

BE=FMNSESFEETD
CPD Activities in the Past Three Years

4% 6%

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

21D°8 X
. Chinese . English

i Bh

Location

BE=FNFESFEETD
CPD Activities in the Past Three Years

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16
. BB e . AR
Hong Kong Island Kowloon New Territories
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Consumer Education

Promotion of Consumer Information

The EAA believes that it is important to raise the awareness of
consumers and their knowledge of the property market. Hence, in
2015/16, the EAA continued to share with the public some useful
information on its work and knowledge on property transactions
through various communication channels and platforms.

The EAA organised two public seminars in September 2015 and
March 2016 respectively. The first seminar was titled “Tips to
become a smart purchaser of first-hand residential properties’”.
Guest speakers shared their insights on the market trend and the
important points-to-note when visiting show flats and appointing
estate agents. The second public seminar, titled “Learn more
about the tenancy matters of residential properties’, aimed at
helping landlords and tenants to have a better understanding
on residential tenancy matters. Both seminars received an
overwhelming response from the audience.
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The EAA organised two public seminars in September 2015 and March 2016 respectively, both received an

overwhelming response from the audience.
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To enhance the public’'s knowledge about residential tenancy
matters, the EAA not only organised the abovementioned
second public seminar in March 2016, but also rolled out a
campaign on the theme. In January 2016, the EAA launched
a new Announcement in the Public Interest ("API") titled "To
protect clients'interests, estate agents should explain the tenancy
agreement in details” The new APl was broadcast on major TV
and radio channels and is also available on the EAA's website and

on YouTube for public viewing.

EERMHEETNERETERR - U
FEHEMBAERE -

The EAA launched a new API which
is about knowledge on residential
tenancy matters.

To tie in with the launch of the above API, a series of roving
exhibitions were held at three shopping centres in Shatin, Shau
Kei Wan and Sham Shui Po respectively on three weekends in
January 2016. Showcased with a series of consumer education
videos together with a mini-game booth, over 6,000 visitors
were reached and about 3,500 copies of consumer booklets and
corporate information were distributed. The EAA also participated
in two recruitment fairs in Yau Tong in August 2015 and Tuen
Mun in February 2016 respectively. The total number of visitors
to the two fairs was over 5,000 and more than 600 copies of EAA
publications were distributed.
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Reaching out to the Community

In addition, the EAA published a new consumer booklet titled
“A Guide to Tenancy” in December 2015. It aimed at reminding
the public of the essential points-to-note when entering into
a tenancy agreement for residential properties. The booklet is
available for collection at the office of the EAA as well as at all the
20 Home Affairs Enquiry Centres ("HAEC”") of the Home Affairs
Department. Positive feedback was received and over 2,500
booklets have been sent to the HAECs for distribution.
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To tie in with the launch of the API, a series of
roving exhibitions were held at three shopping
centres respectively on three weekends in
January 2016.
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Media Relations

To promote a better public understanding of the EAA’s work,
the EAA always keeps a close connection with the media to
publicise its initiatives and efforts. In 2015/16, the EAA issued
19 press releases and held three press conferences and gained
wide media coverage. A total of eight feature interviews with
the EAA Chairman, the CEO and senior management for print
and electronic media were also arranged. The EAA's relationship
with the media was also maintained and strengthened through
a number of media gatherings, including luncheons with media
heads and a Chinese New Year gathering with frontline journalists.

The EAA frequently contributes articles on timely topics relating
to property transactions and expected services of estate agents
to the media. In 2015/16, the EAA had three newspaper/
online columns. A total of 23 articles were published in the free
newspaper am7/30; 13 articles were contributed to The Standard,
and 12 articles on the property website of Singtao and its
property magazine column.
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Exchanges and External Relations

Liaisons with the Trade, the Government
and Other Bodies

The EAA believes that it is vital to maintain good rapport with
key stakeholders and trade representatives, so as to garner their
understanding and support for the EAA’s work. Maintaining a
regular dialogue and two-way exchange with the estate agency
trade is one of the important elements of communication.
In 2015/16, the EAA held five liaison meetings with the
representatives of major trade associations. At these meetings the
trade representatives were consulted on the EAA's new initiatives
and issues of mutual concern were discussed. The trade was also
briefed on the salient points of draft practice circulars and the
trade’s views were noted.

Encouraged by the positive feedback from participants, the EAA
continued to hold focus group meetings in various districts as
a direct dialogue with frontline practitioners. At these meetings
the EAA shared with the frontline practitioners new initiatives
of the EAA and discussed latest practice issues encountered by
the trade. The exchanges helped the EAA to formulate practical
policies and measures for the trade to follow. In 2015/16, a total
of four such meetings were held in Sheung Wan, Wong Tai Sin, Tai
Wai and Chai Wan respectively.

From time to time, the EAA issues letters and reminders in the
format of email or SMS to licensees, or publishes special notices
on the EAA’s website to alert the trade to certain requirements
relating to the estate agency practice or any new Government
measures. In 2015/16, a total of 21 such reminders/notices were
issued. In addition, four issues of the EAA's licensee newsletter,
Horizons, which was revamped for a more user-friendly and
attractive style in the year, were published in 2015/16 to keep
licensees abreast of the EAA's new regulatory measures and latest
activities. Members of the public could also read it through the
EAA's website.
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Reaching out to the Community

In addition, to enhance the trade’s compliance and understanding
of the relevant regulatory requirements when participating
in the sale and purchase of first-hand residential properties, a
new booklet named “Inquiry Hearing Cases of Estate Agents - A
Selection (First-Hand Residential Properties)” was published in
January 2016. This new booklet illustrates the relevant regulations,
guidelines and ethics that estate agents should comply with
when handling first-hand residential property transactions
through real inquiry hearing cases.

The EAA also assisted the Environmental Bureau by issuing mass
emails to invite estate agency practitioners and estate agency
company owners to join the “Charter on External Lighting”
scheme to address the problem of light nuisance and energy
wastage caused by external lighting. It turned out that a number
of estate agency companies had participated in the scheme.

EERETEERRRTEESE - EAERIEEEHE -
Focus group meetings are held in various districts as a direct dialogue with frontline practioners.
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The EAA received a delegation from the Qinghai
Province Administration for Industry to introduce the
key functions of the EAA.

EERMENTRMNEEEENLEFRMELE The EAA also had international exchanges with different
YEBI R M 2 Lkﬁfﬁbk*ﬁﬁﬁﬁ;% o professional or trade bodies outside Hong Kong, which helped
20156 FE BEROMERT promote the image of the EAA. During 2015/16, the EAA received
BEIETHEERRREKE %@%ﬁ(ﬁ delegations from the Qinghai Province Administration, a mainland
ELBBRARIAMEAREATHRE - LA law student delegation from the Legal Education Fund Limited
MEhnsgtEREZENKRE - £€M®  and the Council for Estate Agencies of Singapore respectively.
B BARARELHRIHDZRAM - b Views and regulatory experiences were exchanged and shared
MEEERMAR Bt LAREBH  during the meetings. Participating guests showed a great interest
ERIBITENRE HIEIERER - in learning the role and functions of the EAA and the regulatory
system of the estate agency trade in Hong Kong.
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TO THE MEMBERS OF ESTATE AGENTS AUTHORITY
HERBEER
(established in Hong Kong pursuant to the Estate Agents Ordinance)

We have audited the financial statements of Estate Agents
Authority set out on pages 102 to 125, which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2016, and the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
statement of movements in reserves and statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Estate Agents Authority’s Responsibility for
the Financial Statements

Estate Agents Authority is responsible for the preparation of
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Estate
Agents Ordinance, and for such internal control as Estate Agents
Authority determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 12 of the Estate
Agents Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
Estate Agents Authority's internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by Estate
Agents Authority, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the financial position of Estate Agents Authority as at 31 March
2016, and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the Estate Agents Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

23 August 2016
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Statement of Profit or Loss and

Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 March 2016

" Financial Statements

ON Income
fRRE Licence fees 75,199,402 72,580,410
ZRE Examination fees 6,497,094 5,903,150
A BHA Interest income 1,536,236 1,283,002
83,232,732 79,766,562
X Expenditure
ZEEB & Auditor's remuneration 69,000 65,000
RBHBEFRX Community education expenses 1,470,748 1,040,387
K - FE REEHHANZHE Complaints, investigation and 153,524 111,056
disciplinary proceedings expenses
FERIEERERTEISH CEPA scheme expenses 4,539 15,465
e Depreciation 1,785,168 1,477,559
B EERERBNER Equipment maintenance and 1,152,421 1,080,908
communication expenses
HERIRFE S Estate agent card expenses 116,700 111,710
R & Insurance 1,085,365 1,176,641
REEET Motor vehicle operating expenses 162,789 145,493
FYNEY Sk Office accommodation and related 2,479,374 2,330,152
expenses
LEHERS - T REF Operating lease rentals in respect of 8,361,952 7,756,070
land and buildings
& Postage 308,173 370,024
ENfRI R > A Printing and stationery 493,330 457,367
BERBEER Professional service fees 100,000 677,200
NEBERRBEE Public relations and liaison 24,214 51,167
EERES Publicity and advertising 80,000 4,400
BT Staff costs
- Fr SoRRL - wages, salaries and allowances 48,346,062 46,564,362
- R A ER AR - contributions to mandatory provident 1,371,968 1,351,152
fund scheme
ERRBE Service fees for examinations 4,635,853 4,007,500
HIEBFX Training activity expenses 591,405 599,615
HAhFx Other expenses 495,463 620,444
73,288,048 70,013,672
FRBHEEMEHE KGR Surplus and total comprehensive income 9,944,684 9,752,890

for the year
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Statement of Financial Position

At 31 March 2016

JEMENEE Non-current assets
M - /MR Property, plant and equipment 8 6,768,350 2,187,392
BEWE SMEREZ Deposit paid for acquisition of property, 8 — 2,385,487
Bfiee plant and equipment
6,768,350 4,572,879
mEBEE Current assets
FEUERS « RN RIERES Debtors, prepayments and deposits 3,307,142 2,882,186
TE BAfE SR Time deposits 9 83,605,068 76,154,121
RITER LIRS Bank balances and cash 9 142,227,217 1377327454
229,139,427 216,363,761
mEBEE Current liabilities
PR RRR M EAHIR R Creditors and accruals 12,676,750 8,938,743
SRR Deferred income 10 55,256,496 54,731,226
BB RR R B ZRIA Licence application fees received 11 4,787,107 4,023,931
72,720,353 67,693,900
mBEEFE Net current assets 156,419,074 148,669,861
WEERREARE Total assets less current liabilities 163,187,424 153,242,740
G Reserves 163,187,424 153,242,740

HRFEI02E 1258 2B REKR R 2016

The financial statements on pages 102 to 125 were approved and
authorised for issue by the members of Estate Agents Authority
on 23 August 2016 and are signed on their behalf by:

FSANRHEMERBEER2EKE
BOERREFZE - WHRIATRERERE

R g ped William LEUNG Wing-cheung Ruby HON
*E TTIAEZ, Chairman Chief Executive Officer
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BEEHR Statement of Movements in Reserves
BEZE2016F3A31BIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2016
=N
EHEHES REMHE
Capital  Cumulative
Notes fund
BIT BIT
HKS HKS
R2014F 4 A1H At 1 April 2014 95,474,863 48,014,987 143,489,850
FREH Surplus for the year — 9,752,890 9,752,890
EREEAIEEES Transfer to capital project fund 8,758,307 (8,758,307) —
201543 31 BR At 31 March 2015 and 104233,170 49009570 153,242,740
2015 4 A1 H 1 April 2015
FREH Surplus for the year — 9,944,684 9,944,684
EREEANIERRES Transfer to capital project fund 7,652,620 (7,652,620) —
K206 £3 A 31 H At 31 March 2016 111,885,790 51,301,634 163,187,424

EXRBEAESARANUSNEZEREHENR Capital project fund caters for the cost of capital projects, as
BEERATHBIEE B EMNE  approved by Estate Agents Authority ("EAA"). Transfers will be
AIBEKA - EEREFEMBERE  made from the cumulative fund to the capital project fund or
FEETERZBEEEAREEES  5kH  from the capital project fund to the cumulative fund at the
BERBRESEBRIBEZBHE - discretion of EAA.

MR2016F3 8318 EARERHEE 4 Capital project fund balance at 31 March 2016 included an
BEIEBRBIERARATEBEKAML  amount of HK$105,700,790 (2015: HK$98,048,170) which
= K 3 JE105700,7907% JT(2015% +  represents funds for the possible acquisition of permanent office
98,048,170 7T ° accommodation in future,
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 March 2016

EEER OPERATING ACTIVITIES

FRNA Surplus for the year 9,944,684 9,752,890

RTINS IBEL AR - Adjustments for:

FEMA Interest income (1,536,236) (1,283,002)

e Depreciation 1,785,168 1,477,559

LEESENIZEERSTE Operating cash flows before movements 10,193,616 0,947,447
in working capital

JEULBR TR « TARFRIE MR & 18 11 Increase in debtors, prepayments (242,175) (298,656)
and deposits

FERTARF R ERTIE B 1L 00 (R D) Increase (decrease) in creditors 3,738,007 (10,190)
and accruals

FEAEU AL 1 Increase in deferred income 525,270 2,391,407

B U R AR FR B SR IR IS N Increase in licence applications received 763,176 279,794

EESEBI TSR & %5 NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 14,977,894 12,309,802

REEE INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FETHER Placement of time deposits (7,450,947) (76,154,121)

BEWE  SMEEE Purchase of property, plant (3,980,639) (478,362)
and equipment

BEWE SMEREZEMES  Deposit paid for acquisition of property, — (994,600)
plant and equipment

EHFIE Interest received 1,353,455 1,146,727

WEEEFTRARESFE NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (10,078,131) (76,480,356)

BehBEeSEWEM ML )F  NETINCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 4,899,763 (64,170,554)

) AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

FMReMReEED CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 137,327,454 201,498,008
AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

FHENBReRReEED CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 142,227,217 137,327,454
AT THE END OF THE YEAR

ReRRSEBWERIIT ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:

RITHEGFE MRS Bank balances and cash 142,227,217 137,327,454
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B RSk R M Notes to the Financial Statements

BEZE2016F3A31BIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2016

1. —REH 1. GENERAL
WERBEER (EER)) BER Estate Agents Authority ("EAA") was established with the
1997 5 A 29 B 78 b 1 Cib 2 X IR principal functions of promoting integrity and competence
fRBI) BAZ - HEER L Rie M E of estate agents and issuing estate agents' licences under
RIBOEHEERET  ESREENE the Estate Agents Ordinance dated 29 May 1997 (date
FKF - REEMEREMER - & of enactment). The address of the registered office and
ERNFMRERER B EHE, principal place of business of EAA is 48th Floor, Hopewell
REBEHFERERERETH 48 Centre, Queen's Road East, Hong Kong.
1% o
R BHREABITZE - MAETH The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar,
BEREERNINEEY - which is the same as the functional currency of EAA.

2. ERHFETIREBEI2EHE 2. Application of New and Revised Hong

B iR & ZE A Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs")

RAFE  BEEREXEATY A EAA has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs issued

ERSHMASEMZ(BEBYE by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants

s LR ) B3R (the "HKICPA") for the first time in the current year.

BEGFHERFE 195 BT RERAEE - EEHK

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions

BBMBRELE EFTA 2010 E 2012 FiBME B BRELR 2 FEE

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycle

BBV BHRELER EFTA 2011 22013 FBHBF M B RE LR 2 FEBGE

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011 - 2013 Cycle
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BAEMBWEE
HKFRS 9

BI|Z5 9 5%

E/%ﬁﬁ“#bjzm HERIZE 1557

HKFRS 1
BANHRELEAE 1655
HKFRS 16

EBSEERAZE 15 (1BFTA)
Amendments to HKAS 1

BEBEGFTERIZE 7R (BRI A)
Amendments to HKAS 7

EB G LR E
BIIZE 385Ji 1EE]AN)
Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38

6’5)?&%/% u-l_i'%—

BERAGTEUNEIREFT LR
AIIZE 41 5% (185N
Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41

AT

BB FERIZE 275% (BT AK)
Amendments to HKAS 27

BI#5#RR Financial Statements ! =

2. Application of New and Revised Hong

Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(”H KF RSS”) (Continued)

The application of the above amendments to HKFRSs
in the current year has had no material effect on the
amounts reported and/or disclosures set out in the financial
statements.

EAA has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective.

SRIA’
Financial Instruments’

BEEEHWA’

Revenue from Contracts with Customers®

mE’
Leases®

CHE RN

Disclosure Initiative'

CHEERER

Disclosure Initiative’
BEIMERBHEZ TES AR

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation'

B £ENEY'
Agriculture: Bearer Plants'

BB TSR 2 %

Fquity Method in Separate Financial Statements'
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Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12

and HKAS 28

BB G EERSE 257 (BT AK)
Amendments to HKFRS 2

BERAMBRELANEI0FREES
RIS 2858 (1BETAN)
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

BB IERERERFE 1157 (IBETA)
Amendments to HKFRS 11

BB EHREARERIZFE 1558 (BRI A)
Amendments to HKFRS 15

BB BImELER (IBFTA)
Amendments to HKFRSs

' R2016F1 A1BR B2 FEERH
AR AR o

P R2017F1 B 1Bk B RE 2 EEERM
AR AR R o

 R2018F 1 B1 Ak B RE 2 EEHRM
R ATRRER -

Y R2019F 1 A1 Bz B 2 FEEHIR
£ WRB AR 15521 E A
B AR IR o
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Application of New and Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(”H KF RSS") (Continued)

BREER  BR&EE ARZHIIME

Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception'

DEREERREERENRS’

Clarification and Measurement of Share-based Payment
Transactions’

REERHBEFAECEZRNEEHESIIRN’

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

WiEE B R SR

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations'

BBEBBEBMBHRELELE 155 BRELHOWA P
Clarifications to HKFRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts with
Customers"

TR E T ERAREBUBRE LR FERCE
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle'

Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, with
earlier application permitted.

Effective for according periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017, with
earlier application permitted.

Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with
earlier application permitted.

Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, with
earlier application permitted provided that HKFRS 15 is also applied.

Effective date to be determined.

Management of EAA is in the process of assessing the
potential impact and anticipates that the application of the
new and revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
results and the financial position of EAA.
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Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost basis and in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA and the
Estate Agents Ordinance.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services. The
significant accounting policies adopted are as follows:

Revenue recognition

Income from issuing licences is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the life of the licence.

Income from examinations is recognised on the date of the
examination.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that economic benefits will flow into EAA and the
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income
is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset
to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and deprecation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, EAA reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, EAA estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
statement of financial position when EAA becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets

EAA's financial assets are classified as loan and receivables.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including debtors, time deposits and bank
and cash balances) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment of financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of the reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future
cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

® significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

® breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

® it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

® disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as debtors,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually
are, subsequently, assessed for impairment on a collective
basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include EAA's past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in
the portfolio past the average credit period, and observable
changes in local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset's original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of debtors, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. When
a debtor is considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment losses was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and
the definition of a financial liability.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid on received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Estate Agents Authority ® Annual Report 2015/16

113



114

iR

FTESFTBER @)

EHEE

TREE ( BRENERREER
B ) DERRIZRERM SORZ#H

ﬁ$ﬁ2°

WK FFESD
kkk)%{%ﬁ/\éﬁﬁi/mg,Z{:\m*g
FEME SR EEREER
BREZBRNEDRAR & EHREET
SERBREKIBERCREE W
EERTEREETEREMEREZ
BRI D EB REHR - feEE
FIEEEEE  AEERIRER
BLEBRESHERREEREBAS
E- WEERREEEZCMEE
FrERE BRIy RRKEEZR - 8l
EEREERRZEMEE g
MEWH RS RIERR S KIRE
=,

FRIIBRACHEER  ZEE
Z%ﬁ@ﬁa%&ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬂ&
EREMEEKREEPERZ RS
WasEEf s ZR I RBaT

R e
EREE RN E TR - HX?%’EJZE
miy o TRIEEREMAE-

R # A ER Eﬁﬁﬁﬁ&f
HﬁFZ#% MERPRER -

HERIEESEF ¢ 2015/16 FHR

" Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including creditors and accruals) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Derecognition

EAA derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If
EAA neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, EAA continues to recognise the asset to
the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises an
associated liability. If EAA retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, EAA
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises
a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.

EAA derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
EAA's obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Leasing

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised
as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term, except where another systematic basis is
more representative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Employee benefits

Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when
they accrue to employees.

A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.

Employee benefits - provident fund obligations

EAA operates a mandatory provident fund scheme ("MPF
scheme") in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF scheme
are held in a separate trustee - administered fund. Both
EAA and the employees are required to contribute 5%
of the employee's relevant income up to a maximum of
HKS$1,500 (2015: HKS1,500) per employee per month. EAA's
contributions to the MPF scheme are expensed as incurred.
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AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the process of applying EAA's accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, management had made the
following judgments that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

Allowances for bad and doubtful debts of debtors

Debtors are measured at initial recognition at fair value,
and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Appropriate allowances for
estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when there is objective evidence
that the asset is impaired.

In determining individual allowances, EAA has considered
that detailed procedures have been in place to monitor
this risk. In determining whether allowance for bad and
doubtful debts is required, EAA takes into consideration the
aging status, the likelihood of collection and the estimated
discounted future cash flows. Specific allowance is made
for debtors that are unlikely to be collected. If the financial
conditions of these debtors were to deteriorate, resulting in
an impairment of their ability to make payments, allowances
may be required.



5. [RERE 5. LICENCE FEES

RRARR B B A Total licence fees 75,199,402 72,580,410
6. ZRE 6. EXAMINATION FEES

WERENZEEBEEIRES Estate agents and salespersons 6,497,094 5,903,150
qualifying examinations

7. BilE 7. TAXATION
IS (RS IEBY E 87K - EEE RJE EAA is exempt from Hong Kong Profits Tax under section 87
N B AR BT B R o of the Inland Revenue Ordinance.
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8. W% - BMKRFZME/BEE 8. Property, Plant and Equipment/Deposit
Iz - M RBREZEH

Paid for Acquisition of Property, Plant and

~— .
BE Equipment
HEMHEEE RE ERAREE &iE
Leasehold Motor Furniture and
improvements vehicles fixtures Equipment
BT BT BT BIT
HKS HKS HKS HKS
2% COST
R2014F481H  At1April 2014 4,565,453 557,264 1775694  10471,139 17,369,550
NE Additions — — 14,450 463912 478362
FFH Disposals — — (22,237) (37,084) (59,321)
A201543 831 H At31March 2015 4,565,453 557,264 1767907 10897967  17,788591
NE Additions 14,400 — — 6,351,726 6,366,126
HisH Disposals — — — (19210) (19210)
A201643 431 H At31March 2016 4579853 557,264 1767907 17230483 24135507
e DEPRECIATION
R2014F4 818 At April 2014 3,081,078 418712 1,595,477 8187694 14,182,961
FRBAE Provided for the year 369,079 136,796 54,583 917,101 1,477,559
il Eliminated on — — (22,237) (37,084) (59,321)
disposals
201543 31 H At 31 March 2015 4,350,157 555,508 1,627,823 9067711 15,601,199
FNEAE Provided for the year 216,169 1,756 54,874 1,512,369 1,785,168
il Eliminated on — — — (19,210) (19.210)
disposals
A201643 A31 B At31March 2016 4,566,326 557,264 1682697 10560870 17,367,157
BRHE{E NET BOOK VALUES
201643 A31 H At31March 2016 13,527 — 85210 6,669,613 6,768,350
A201543 31 H At31March 2015 215,296 1,756 140,084 1,830,256 2,187,392

HERIBEERD »2015/16 FER
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2385487 BT c Zir e BB EAMR
FEBETHK  WRAFEEREY)
¥ BMKEE -

Bk Financial Statements ! =

Property, Plant and Equipment/Deposit
Paid for Acquisition of Property, Plant and
Equipment (continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method, at the following rates

per annum:
Leasehold 20% or over the period of
improvements the lease term if it is less
than 5 years
Motor vehicles 30%
Furniture and fixtures 20%
Equipment 20% to 30%

At 31 March 2015, the total deposit paid in relation to the
development of an integrated management information
system was HK$2,385,487. The development was completed
and the integrated management information system was
transferred to property, plant and equipment during the
current year.
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9. IRITHEBRKEEREH 9. Bank Balances and Cash and Time

(EEN Deposits
RITEBR LA CEREERFELZ Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by EAA and
ReERBRTHEHHERSENwH, & short-term bank deposits with remaining tenure of 8 to 56
B R M5 FE A ENF001%ZE0.85% days at prevailing market interest rates ranging from 0.01%
(20154 : /" F001% E0.85%) 5+ & t0 0.85% per annum (2015: 0.01% to 0.85% per annum).
ZRRHIRITIER ©

Time deposits comprise short-term bank deposits with
EHEARBREHTISHARIM4E remaining tenure of 134 to 158 days at prevailing market
158 B 1R E K 35 F F X 5 0.65% interest rates being 0.65% to 0.70% per annum (2015: 0.50%
Z070% (015%F : 971F-050% = 0.70%) to 0.70% per annum).

TR RHIRITER

EAA considers that the carrying amounts of these assets
EERRARSEECRAERA approximate their fair values.
ANFEEREE °
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10.9E

11.

12.8

FEURA
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E W R EE 7R
REHE D E R E AR R

BHER A HERAEY
REERDERES

PIVES

10. Deferred Income
Deferred income represents licence fees received from estate

agents for a validity period, which are deferred according to
EAA's income recognition policy.

11.Licence Application Fees Received

These represent amounts paid by estate agents applying for
the licences which were still being processed but not yet
approved at the end of the reporting period.

12. Capital Commitments

MEBWE  BIMEREZ Capital expenditure in respect of
BARE the acquisition of property, plant
and equipment:

ERTANERE 150k o 3

- contracted but not provided for in 746,000 3,481,000

the financial statements
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13.0Operating Lease Commitments

At the end of the reporting period, EAA had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of rented premises which fall due
as follows:

—FR Within one year 8,023,824 4,743,571
FE_EERF(RIEEEMRS) In the second to fifth year inclusive 12,704,388 —
20,728,212 4,743,571

KEHERBENEERMENRAE
MERENZEES HERESFEY
B=F Q015=F)FE X °
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Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by EAA
for certain of its office premises. Leases are negotiated for
and rentals are fixed for an average term of three years (2015:
three years).

14. Capital Risk Management

EAA's capital comprises primarily the fund accumulated
since its establishment, and its objective when managing
the capital is to ensure that EAA will be able to continue as a
going concern so that it can continue to promote integrity
and competence of estate agents.

EAA regularly reviews and manages its capital to ensure
adequacy for both the operational and capital needs. EAA
operates a zero distribution policy with regard to surpluses
generated. All surpluses are transferred to the cumulative
fund for future operational needs. EAA charges an annual
licence fees on the estate agent.

EAA regularly reviews the need to increase licence fees to
ensure operational needs are fully covered.
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15.€mIT A

a. ER T BRI

15.Financial Instruments

a. Categories of financial instruments

EHMEE . Financial assets:

ERNERGIE (BIFRe & Loans and receivables (including cash 228,740,296 215,804,280
HWEeEEY) and cash equivalents)

EHEE: Financial liabilities:

TS IDIN Amortised costs 11,745,031 8,756,984

b. £RlEMREE B £

ERBR

b. Financial risk management objectives

EERITEcRITABERK
BRI - EEAFR - IR1T4ERR - IR
T REMNER  ZEem T A
EREEMERE &ZSEerT
B EBERRBIEMSRER(E
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%ZE’\‘—FX - ERETERE
T—_Exi C ARERT R B
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and policies

EAA's major financial instruments include debtors,
time deposits, bank balances and cash and creditors.
Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (including interest rate
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure that
appropriate measures are implemented in timely and
effective manner.

Market risk

Cash flow interest rate risk

EAA is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk through
the impact of rate changes on interest bearing financial
assets. Interest bearing financial assets are mainly
balances with banks which are all short term in nature.
Therefore, any future variation in interest rates will not

have a significant impact on the results of EAA.
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Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial
loss to EAA. EAA's exposure of its counterparties are
continuously monitored, received and approved.

In order to minimise the credit risk, EAA reviews the
recoverable amount of the receivables at the end of each
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this
regard, EAA considers that EAA's credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The credit risk on time deposits and liquid funds is
limited because the counterparties are banks with good
reputation.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management
rests with the management of EAA, which has built an
appropriate liquidity risk management framework for
the management of EAA's short, medium and long-
term funding and liquidity management requirements.
The management of EAA manages liquidity risk by
maintaining adequate reserves and continuously
monitors the forecast and actual cash flows.
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The following table details EAA's remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities on the
agreed repayment terms. The table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which EAA can be
required to pay.

hn#EF g RURAE
BERAI=R 31260 K REARE SREE
Weighted
average Total
effective undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 0-30days 31-60days cash flows amount
BIT BIT BT BT
% HKS HKS HKS HKS
2016 £F 2016
FERIRRK Creditors — 10,686,567 1,058,464 11,745,031 11,745,031
2015 2015
FERTER SR Creditors — 8,225,207 531,777 8,756,984 8,756,984

c. AE¥EE
cRMEERSREEZRATE
B ZMBRBRERESME
W2 EBRAERE -

EERRA  RNYUBHMKRREH
RAAENEBEERECRAE
ZEREEEA N HEERD -

c. Fairvalues

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

EAA considers that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised
cost in the financial statements approximate their
corresponding fair values.
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Panel of the EAA

Finance and Strategic Development
Committee

Terms of Reference:

1.

To consider strategic issues of long-term significance, in
preparation for consideration by the Board.

2. EREENMEGEE — ER2EE 2 Toexamine issues of major financial significance, in particular,
W&V - ZEINBZEAD - BETHA draft statements of accounts, appointment of external
THEE BB E  JBESE auditor, staff cost implications, budgetary matters, long-
B RENVWBHHSMEEETE - I term financial planning and asset management, and to make
B RIEREE ERES RS ° recommendations to the Board for consideration.

3. EBRANBREEEE - WEE K 3. To oversee human resources management and to review and
ZiEE| B EMEATHE - ANIRE approve establishment structure, reorganisation, manpower
AR AN E B E NI FEEHIET o planning and development of human resources policies and

procedures.

4 AEBEMAHBREEZE — & 4 To examine issues of major significance in human
HE 2R - HENFEEEE R resources management, in particular, the pay structure,
EERE T(BFETHATRNEE)RN remuneration and allowance policies and terms and
BRERNIEHE  WiEERIRETET conditions of employment of the EAA employees (including
BEEREZR - the Chief Executive Officer and Directors), and to make

recommendations to the Board for consideration.

5. BEBESREIEMIET  BHELKE 5. At the direction of the Chairman, to review and evaluate the
THER BN TERIR - LAETE performance of the Chief Executive Officer and Directors for
=RER - ERAAEH B F the purpose of confirmation of appointment, extension of
B~ RIFskEEIER - s H fh EREE FY probation, promotion, dismissal, termination or renewal of
HEET  UERBTETEEHEIERER employment or other employment related issues and the
EHRRE Wi ERRCEERE granting of any performance-linked awards, and to make
HEEZ o recommendations to the Board for consideration.

6. BELRMEBREES BITHEFIATER 6. To review and endorse the annual work plan and budget

MEETIERTEIMBES - YRR
BREREEREFHER °

HERIBEED »2015/16 FER

prepared by the Administration and to recommend the same
to the Board for consideration.
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7. REERELMIREETEHITFEIESIA 7. To devise guidelines for and make recommendations to the
MEEREERRIEZ - Board on the investment of the EAA monies.

8. BEEARARATHEEBHMRA 8 To monitor trade and community response to the EAA
MBRHRIE  WRLAEERES regulations and policies and, on such basis, recommend
B/ ERAEESEREE LR - appropriate actions to the Board and/or the standing

committees for consideration.

9. TERZEEIFERSIK—MEMHEZE 9. To set up a task force as may from time to time be directed
SeBAMMTIENAE - ARITER by the Committee Chairman, comprising any member(s) of
= @Eﬁ%ﬁﬁ?ﬁimlf/ﬁ B AL the Committee, to carry out such tasks as the Committee
T{E& HERESERBRRE Chairman may assign; to deliberate on the findings of the
B task force; and to make recommendations to the Board for

approval as appropriate.

NVHITHEEREERBTEEEMI  10.To perform such other tasks as the Board may from time to
E o time delegate.

NINRAEEE  REEBS/TFEEBEEM  11.To obtain legal and/or expert advice or service relating to
EENERBVERE K/ HBRXER IR - the exercise of the Committee’s functions and powers as and
when the Committee considers necessary.

RE : Membership :
ERE BKFFELAE - SBS P Chairman:  Mr William LEUNG Wing-cheung, SBS, JP
BB BRERx4 Members:  Mr Charles CHAN Chiu-kwok
RIS - JP Mr Horace CHEUNG Kwok-kwan, JP
g oA ===l Sr LAU Chun-kong
BERLZL P Ms Elaine LIU Yuk-ling, JP
=RAL L Ms Gilly WONG Fung-han
RESLL Miss Melissa WU
RERKLE P Mr YU Wai-wai, JP
BRMFEREEANER Permanent Secretary for Transport and Housing
(BE)sERK (Housing) or his representative
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Disciplinary Committee

Terms of Reference:

1.

To draw up guidelines and procedures to ensure consistency
and fairness in handling disciplinary cases.

To receive, consider and inquire into complaints as mentioned
in section 29(1) of the Estate Agents Ordinance (EAO) and
submissions by the Chief Executive Officer as mentioned in
section 29(2) of the EAO that are referred by the EAA to the
Committee, and to conduct such inquiry as the Committee
may think fit after having considered such complaints and
submissions.

To receive and inquire into complaints lodged against licensed
estate agents or salespersons for breaches of the Code of
Ethics, practice circulars or guidelines issued to the trade from
time to time by the EAA.

To consider the reports and recommendations of the
investigator appointed by the EAA under section 28 of the EAO,
with referral by the Section 28 Investigation Committee, to
look into suspected and alleged breaches or non-compliance
of the provisions of the EAO and to conduct such inquiry as
the Committee may think fit after having considered such
reports and recommendations.

To exercise any of the disciplinary powers provided
under section 30 of the EAO as the Committee considers
appropriate.

To attach to licences such conditions as the Committee may
consider appropriate.

To refer from time to time cases of malpractice or complaints
considered by the Committee to other committees for
formulation and/or revision of policies, practice or regulations
for better discharge of the EAA's functions.
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8. To set up a task force as may from time to time be directed

by the Committee Chairman, comprising any member(s) of
the Committee, to carry out such tasks as the Committee
Chairman may assign; to deliberate on the findings of the
task force; and to make recommendations to the Board for
approval as appropriate.

9. To obtain legal and/or expert advice or service relating to

the exercise of the Committee’s functions and powers as and
when the Committee considers necessary.

RE Membership:

FE BERZL )P Chairman: Ms Elaine LIU Yuk-ling, JP

BB : BILBLL P Members: Miss Jane Curzon LO, JP
REESESE Mr NG Kai-man

BEFSHA 0 BBS JP
Bl E R

Mr Simon SIU Chak-yu, BBS, JP
Mr Calvin TSE Shun-lai

EBEUTE Mr Lawrance WONG Dun-king

BB AE Mr Ricky WONG Kwong-yiu

REDSLL Miss Melissa WU

RES L Ms Avon YUE Nga-fong
ZAEKE Board-appointed Members:

PRERE ST MrTony TN CHAN

KB+ Ms Winnie CHEUNG Lai-chun

LEEZ L Ms Doreen KONG

AT A Mr Anthony KWOK Chong

RETHE S & Mr Alex LAl Sze-wai

FBEEL+ Ms Sylvia LEE

BERRSEE Mr LIU Chi-ming

ERgut Ms Jessica YIP Mo-ching
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Licensing Committee

Terms of Reference:

1.

To consider and recommend licensing requirements for estate
agents and salespersons.

To consider and recommend the criteria for exemption from
the licensing requirements for any particular class of persons.

To instruct the EAA Administration to process applications for
licences/statements of particulars of business (SPOBs) and to
grant or renew such licences/SPOBs to applicants meeting the
licensing requirements.

To consider and if thought appropriate, to approve or
refuse applications for licences/SPOBs brought before the
Committee.

To exercise and perform any and such of the EAA's functions
and powers under sections 17, 23, 24, 25 and 27 of the
Estate Agents Ordinance and section 9 of the Estate Agents
(Licensing) Regulation.

To set policies relating to licensing matters.

To review and make recommendations on the scale of licence
fees and charges for services provided by the EAA.

To consider and design the relevant forms and related
documents pertaining to licensing matters.
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9. FEIEEZEETFIESIKZ—MEE 9. To set up a task force as may from time to time be directed
ZEENEHEKH ITIENE - U by the Committee Chairman, comprising any member(s) of

TEEEFEMEBEIRNIE T the Committee, to carry out such tasks as the Committee
HERTEER  RERRAESRRER Chairman may assign; to deliberate on the findings of the
= task force; and to make recommendations to the Board for

approval as appropriate.

0.RAEE  REESITHEEBAEFME  10.To obtain legal and/or expert advice or service relating to the
NERERE R/ HBHEE RSR exercise of the Committee’s functions and powers as and
when the Committee considers necessary.

RE : Membership:

FE - EEroam:F=1:ii Chairman: Sr LAU Chun-kong

BB - B REERHIX Members: Professor CHAU Kwong-wing
RO Ms Imma LING Kit-sum
EAELL P Miss Jane Curzon LO, JP
it IB18 55 & Mr Calvin TSE Shun-lai
mIRE A Mr Ricky WONG Kwong-yiu
RIEF L+ Ms Avon YUE Nga-fong

ZAEKE - Board-appointed Members:
BERREE Mr LIU Chi-ming
FRe SR =AM Sr Keith SIU Leung-hung
REERT Ms Winnie CHEUNG Yuk-wan
(CEEEZEEREK) (representative of Consumer Council)
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HEEE Terms of Reference:
CHIET ~ Rt R(&ETHeSESTAl - 3B 1. To draw up, review and revise code(s) of ethics governing the

conduct and practice of the estate agency trade.

. BE CGBEREBEA)Y At ER 2. To review and make recommendations on the regulations
B LEERRG) - Wt under the Estate Agents Ordinance (EAO) relating to the
pEe practice and operation of estate agents.

C TEEZEREHERIBITENHE 3. Toconsider and review practices within the trade and prepare
FiE o UHIETSHEER M ERE T or consider practice circulars or other guidelines on various
TEHIE B Eiga| - aspects of estate agency work from time to time.

| EERREEENIT (MIEERIBRIEM)Y REKT 4. To monitor compliance of the EAO and its subsidiary
B LM« (BRsPsrR) -« SiEmE s E legislations, code(s) of ethics, practice circulars or other
MIES| HYIE L - WK E R - HEH guidelines; and to liaise with the trade on ways to improve the
IR EKERRISEEN A © standard of practice and quality of service.

CHETHERBMNESXEERESRME 5 To determine the syllabi and fees for the qualifying
BEINER o examinations for estate agents and salespersons.

. BEBERERMIT TIERIETZEL - 6. To set the parameters for the administration of the qualifying

examinations.

. EERERESNRESFHEFEE . E 7. To oversee and give direction to the EAA Administration in
HE R ES BB SRE - SRt the setting and moderation of examination questions and
AESE BT EF R K| o determination of penalties for breaches of examination

regulations by candidates.

B REBTEREALRELZFEAZS 8 Toreview and determine the pass marks and commendation
(ER AR BINEESE o marks for the qualifying examinations and, where appropriate,

those for each part thereof.
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9. To set up a task force as may from time to time be directed
by the Committee Chairman, comprising any member(s) of
the Committee, to carry out such tasks as the Committee
Chairman may assign; to deliberate on the findings of the
task force; and to make recommendations to the Board for
approval as appropriate.

10. To obtain legal and/or expert advice or service relating to

the exercise of the Committee’s functions and powers as and

when the Committee considers necessary.

RE Membership:
FE - SREI$9SEE - P Chairman: Mr Horace CHEUNG Kwok-kwan, JP
gBlFE: =RfExt Vice-Chairman:  Ms Gilly WONG Fung-han
X & BREBEL e 4 Members: Mr Charles CHAN Chiu-kwok
RS Eed Professor CHAU Kwong-wing
BRI Ms Imma LING Kit-sum
BT EL A Mr LIU Che-ning
EAEZL P Miss Jane Curzon LO, JP
REERLE Mr NG Kai-man
BETFILE - BBS P Mr Simon SIU Chak-yu, BBS, JP
WIS e Mr Calvin TSE Shun-lai
EBESE & Mr Lawrance WONG Dun-king
ERREA Mr Ricky WONG Kwong-yiu
RIEF L L Ms Avon YUE Nga-fong
BRLEERTIWER Permanent Secretary for Transport and
(BR)sERRX Housing (Housing) or his representative
LZAEKE : Board-appointed Members:
PRoKBESE A Mr Louis CHAN Wing-kit
FEXEE Mr Richard LEE Chi-shing
FREE Mr LEE King-leong
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Professional Development Committee

Terms of Reference:

1.

To examine the training needs and design appropriate
training programmes to raise the competence of licensees.

2. To oversee the implementation of the Continuing Professional

Development (CPD) Scheme including-

a. conducting periodic reviews on its focus, scope and
requirements;

b. determining guidelines for assigning core and non-core
activities;

c. approving CPD activity providers and evaluating CPD
activities;

d. adopting appropriate CPD activities of other professions

and trades into the CPD Scheme of the EAA; and

e. monitoring the effectiveness of the CPD Scheme and
making recommendations to the Board as appropriate.

3. To advise on professional exchange activities and monitor the

administration of scheme(s) relating to reciprocal recognition
of professional qualifications for the estate agency trade.

4. To set up a task force as may from time to time be directed

by the Committee Chairman, comprising any member(s) of
the Committee, to carry out such tasks as the Committee
Chairman may assign; to deliberate on the findings of the
task force; and to make recommendations to the Board for
approval as appropriate.

5. To obtain such legal and/or expert advice as the Committee

may consider necessary for or in relation to the proper
discharge and exercise of the Committee’s functions and
powers.



Mith— : BRERTREEQHRET/E
Appendix I: Standing Committees and Working Panel of the EAA

54=1 Membership:
B REELE P Chairman: Mr YU Wai-wai, JP
e BRI Members: Ms Imma LING Kit-sum
BT ELRE Mr LIU Che-ning
REERSESE Mr NG Kai-man
BIEFILE BBS P Mr Simon SIU Chak-yu, BBS, JP
EBEEE Mr Lawrance WONG Dun-king
BRMFEERFEIWER Permanent Secretary for Transport and
(BE)sHEAR Housing (Housing) or his representative
ZHEKE : Board-appointed Members:
AT A Mr Anthony KWOK Chong
FTERE Mr LEE Chi-wah
mEFlA Lt Ms Angela WONG Ching-yi
REE2ET Dr Horace YUEN Hoi-sing
Ryt Mr Leslie LEUNG Kim-hang (representative of

(BZEIRBRR)

the Vocational Training Council)
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Section 28 Investigation Panel '

Terms of Reference:

1.

1

To formulate guidelines for and procedures on the selection of
cases for investigation under section 28 of the Estate Agents
Ordinance (EAO).

To oversee the conduct of investigation under section 28 of
the EAQ to ensure its full compliance.

To receive and consider reports and recommendations from
the EAA Administration on suspected or alleged cases of
breaches or non-compliance of a requirement(s) or other
provision(s) of the EAO warranting investigation under section
28 of the EAQ.

To appoint investigator(s) under section 28 of the EAO to
conduct such investigation and carry out such duties as the
Panel considers necessary.

To receive and consider the reports and recommendations
from the investigator appointed by the Panel under section 28
of the EAQ.

Where the investigator recommends to the Panel that the
exercise of disciplinary powers under section 30 of the EAO
should be considered, to refer the case to the Disciplinary
Committee for its consideration.

To set up a task force as may from time to time be directed by
the Panel Chairman, comprising any member(s) of the Panel,
to carry out such tasks as the Panel Chairman may assign;
to deliberate on the findings of the task force; and to make
recommendations to the Board for approval as appropriate.

Not a standing committee, meet as and when needed
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8. MWRE BT G ERIBIEHI) 8. To obtain legal and/or expert advice or service relating to
%28 1'mFﬁaTEHE’JE’LA)%H‘ék e RIRE the exercise of the EAA's functions and powers as prescribed
BUEER / HEEEBRHRTE © by section 28 of the EAO as and when the Panel considers

necessary.

9 TERITCEEREIZA) FE281E 9. To exercise and perform any and such of the EAA's functions

FRETBAM ESE BB BE AN /) - and powers as prescribed by section 28 of the EAQ.
KB : Membership :
FFE o BREBESLE Chairman:  Mr Charles CHAN Chiu-kwok
KE: BEBx4L Members:  Mr LIU Che-ning
REREKE P Mr YU Wai-wai, JP
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Appendix IIl: Achievement of the Administration’s
Performance Standards 2015/16

& Enquiries

ARASAE R it S fE R

Service type Standard Results

EESH Response to enquiries

- % ’ﬁéu’] - Telephone enquiries - —EAIERA" .« Within one working day' 100%
BEEL) (voice mail messages)

- EHEH - Written enquiries - EETIEARA’ - Within seven working day” 100%

E#%£ 5 Qualifying Examinations

g3 Wl BiR ERXK
Service type Standard Results
BHKE Issue result slips’ EH%EM 14 Within 14 working days 100%
imanes ’ TERA after the examination
[ &8 Licensing
RRFSHE B iR ER XK
Service type Standard Results
BRIBFTHEPRERES  Process new licence EIF BB Within 10 working days 99.92%
applications 101 TERA*  for new applications*
FRIRAEIR RS Process renewal WEIEREERFE%R  Within 20 working days 99.98%
licence applications ®I20{ETYERA  for renewal applications
RRT I ERE Refund of application 10 Z{EXRA>  Within 10 working day’ 100%
FRERSK SRR  fees for rejected/
FREEHY RS cancelled applications

| EERMIERRES—ER -
The EAA's working days are from Monday to Friday.

P RBIE AR T —EIERFMAE o

’ From the next working day following receipt of the enquiry.

P EERERASEALTIRRBENERER - ERMNKNEBNEREBERARTXBEL -

® lssued by the Hong Kong Examinations and Assessment Authority, authorised by the EAA to administer the examinations.

f HEERKEEREE ;%iFH&X{ﬁFZT AR ZEBER/ L EFBHASENERAMEERZ B) AL - 152
ARERFEA X ﬁbm%#ﬂﬂgiﬁﬁ%J@Eﬁ RABMEETHEE AE | RERHM I RENR - It REERRDE - BEERRE
JH:%EHE‘EE”EE A - ARBBEARE= %(WUXZDE)EF‘AIE% ERAREBR)ERBMFE  FEIEER - 4 rIUREIESIER
B
From the next day following the receipt of an application, the required fee and documents to the day the licence/statement of
particulars of business is issued (i.e. the day the licence is available for collection). This service target does not apply to applications
which require the EAA Licensing Committee to determine whether the applicant fulfills the “fit and proper” requirement and other
licensing requirements as prescribed under the EAO. A longer duration is needed for such cases for the EAA to make enquiries and for
the applicant or any third party (such as the Official Receiver’s Office, trustees-in-bankruptcy or the Police) to respond before the EAA
approves or rejects the application.

° HBUHSUBERRF Y T ELERE  WBRERR - AlRKBIRETESNETAERZ F—ELERET -
® From the next day after an application is cancelled or rejected; for bankruptcy cases, from the next day following the receipt of
instructions from the Official Receiver’s Office or the trustee-in-bankruptcy.
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ReFR#E

Complaints and Enforcement

AR HE B Iz EIRR
Service type Standard Results
MR R/ A Acknowledge receiptof ~ F{ETIERA Within five 100%
HE EREF written complaints working days

W B 2 4975 A7 Provide a written response 15 A TERA Within 15 100%
Nz EREF A to complainants upon working days

YEH EE 1B receipt of sufficient

supporting documents

B EATH TR AT E MR AR

Complete investigation of non-compliance cases by the Complaints and Enforcement Sections

RER(EZR Fast Track Cases =EAR Within three calendar 100%
(B EED S (Cases involving no months

T FESFEAIL  witnesses and concerning

QSR \IEIERAE  allegation(s) of the Eight

MEENER) Specified Breaches only)
= ElEES Normal Cases ANMEAR Within six calendar 100%
(GERRAZRW R ¥ (Cases other than Fast months
ML HMIESETE  Track Cases concerning
B fEZ) not more than two

allegations)
EREEZR Complex Cases AEAA Within nine calendar 100%
(BrPREZRKEE®  (Cases other than Fast months
EZR AN EZR ) track cases and Normal

Cases)
L%ﬂ? FAFE Notify complainants of 10 B ZERA Within 10 working 100%
GRS the outcome of the case days
BRI A Notify complainees 10fEZERA Within 10 working 100%
(FEAN)HEE (licensees) of the outcome days
R of the case
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Appendix II: Achievement of the Administration’s
Performance Standards 2015/16

RREWR
Disciplinary Proceedings
BRFSHE | T eI
Service type Standard Results
BITER Conduct the first TER T E 2 HY Within 90 working days 96.24%
w R disciplinary inquiry 0 ETERA after completion of

hearing of a case investigation

FEERESE

Continuing Professional Development ("CPD") Scheme

AR HE B £l ERE
Service type Standard Results
TR E  Process applications for 20 fETL{ERR Within 20 working days 100%
BEXHEEEE  endorsement of CPD

A HY E R activities

BHIHFERE]  Issue certificates of 30 B TERA Within 30 working days 100%
TRNEER attendance for EAA-

BT E organised CPD activities

HEEEEY

OESTUN
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Estate Agents Authority
48/F, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong
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www.eaa.org.hk
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